
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JANUARY 22, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

January 22, 2007 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Paul Monson – St. Augustine Ev. 
Lutheran Church.  Cub Scout Pack 1010 – Webelos Den from Schroeder Elementary 
School will assist Mayor Schilling in leading the Pledge of Allegiance. 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Service Commendation – Peggy Adams .............................................................. 1 
b) Service Commendation – Mary Ann Nemshick .................................................... 1 
c) Service Commendation – Marlene Struckman ..................................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 No Public Hearings 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 Troy Daze Festival 1 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 3 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 4 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 4 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 4 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – 
Printing/Distribution of Water and Sewer Bills ...................................................... 4 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Liquid 
Calcium Chloride .................................................................................................. 4 

E-5 Continued Participation in the Administration of School District Elections 5 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 5 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 5 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Ratification of Board of Review 
Appointment: b) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authority 
(LDFA) c) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Zoning Appeals; 
Election Commission; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; and Municipal Building 
Authority 6 

F-2 2007 Poverty Exemption Guidelines 8 

F-3 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Stone Haven Park Site Condominium, 
South of Wattles, West of Crooks, Section 20 – R-1B 9 

F-4  Disposal/Sale of Excess Property 9 

F-5  Adoption of Amended Goals and Objectives 10 



 

 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 11 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 11 

a) Michigan Next Energy Exemptions – February 26, 2007.................................... 11 
b) Street Vacation Application (File Number: SV 188) – A Section of Alley 

Located North of Big Beaver between Louis and Troy, Section 22 – February 
26, 2007 ............................................................................................................. 11 

c) Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-724) – Proposed Spa Renaissance, 
North Side of Big Beaver between Troy and Louis, Section 22 – R-1E to O-1 
– February 26, 2007 ........................................................................................... 11 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 11 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 11 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 11 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 11 

I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 11 

REPORTS: 12 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 12 

a) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 5, 2006 ........................ 12 
b) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 5, 2006 ........................ 12 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – December 6, 2006..... 12 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – December 6, 2006..... 12 
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 7, 2006 ................... 12 
f) Planning Commission/Draft – December 12, 2006............................................. 12 
g) Planning Commission/Final – December 12, 2006............................................. 12 
h) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 13, 

2006 ................................................................................................................... 12 
i) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – December 19, 2006 ........................................ 12 
j) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 19, 2006 ........................................ 12 
k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 2, 2007....................................... 12 
l) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – January 4, 2007....................... 12 
m) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 8, 2007 .......................................... 12 

J-2 Department Reports: 12 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of December, 2006.... 12 
b) Building Department – Permits Issued July through December, 2006................ 12 



 

 

c) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Year 2006............................. 12 
d) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Congress of Cities 

and Expo ............................................................................................................ 12 
e) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-

Thumb Auctioneering, LLC – October and November, 2006.............................. 12 
f) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2006 ........................... 12 
g) Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Leadership 

Meeting............................................................................................................... 12 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 12 

a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Robert Smith Regarding the Efforts of 
Officer Villerot ..................................................................................................... 12 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 12 

J-5  Calendar 12 

J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Sidewalk 
Maintenance Program 12 

STUDY ITEMS: 12 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 12 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 12 

CLOSED SESSION: 13 

L-1 Closed Session: 13 

RECESSED 13 

RECONVENED 13 

ADJOURNMENT 13 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 13 

Monday, February 5, 2007 Regular City Council................................................... 13 
Wednesday, February 7, 2007 (Liquor Violation Hearing)  Regular City Council.. 13 
Monday, February 26, 2007 Regular City Council................................................. 13 
Wednesday, February 28, 2007 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council. 13 



 

 

Monday, March 5, 2007 Regular City Council ....................................................... 13 
Monday, March 19, 2007 Regular City Council ..................................................... 13 
Monday, April 2, 2007 Regular City Council.......................................................... 13 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Paul Monson – St. Augustine 
Ev. Lutheran Church.  Cub Scout Pack 1010 – Webelos Den from Schroeder Elementary 
School will assist Mayor Schilling in leading the Pledge of Allegiance. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Service Commendation – Peggy Adams  
b) Service Commendation – Mary Ann Nemshick  
c) Service Commendation – Marlene Struckman      
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Troy Daze Festival 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
Proposed Resolution A 
 
WHEREAS, Sponsorship of the Troy Daze Festival can now obtain adequate insurance 
coverage; and  
 
WHEREAS, Returning sponsorship of the Troy Daze Festival will give more volunteer 
ownership to the Festival; 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council RETURNS sponsorship of the 

roy Daze Festival to the Troy Community Foundation with the following stipulations: 
 

1.  
nsoring agency, naming 

e City of Troy as an additional insured party for the Festival. 

2. 
ure safety and security for 

e surrounding houses and businesses to the Festival site. 

3.  special activities prior to 
e Festival for review and approval by the Troy City Council. 

4. 

nce 

ommunications, transportation, sanitation and utilities 
ecessary for Festival operations. 

5. y of Troy shall supply no 
funding for any portion of the Troy Daze Festival operations. 

r Proposed Resolution B

T

If the Festival is to be held on City-owned property, adequate liability insurance coverage
as determined by the City of Troy has to be obtained by the spo
th
 
The Troy City Council will set the hours of operation and other measures  as indicated 
in Chapter 26.17 et. seq. of the Municipal Code to better ens
th
 
The Troy Daze Committee will submit a listing of activities and
th
 
The newly formed private sponsorship of the Troy Daze Festival will pay the actual costs 
of rental of park lands or other sites owned by the City of Troy; all actual security related 
costs charged by the Troy Police and Fire Departments; all actual costs for maintena
and clean up of the park facilities at the end of the Festival; and actual costs for any 
required equipment necessary for c
n
 
Unless otherwise determined by the Troy City Council, the Cit

 
O
 
WHEREAS, Sponsorship of the Troy Daze Festival can now obtain adequate insurance 
overage; and  

nsorship of the Troy Daze Festival will give more community 
wnership to the Festival; 

of the 
roy Daze Festival to the Troy Community Foundation with the following stipulations: 

 
1. e 

oring agency, naming the 
City of Troy as an additional insured party for the Festival. 

 
2. 

sure safety and security for the 
surrounding houses and businesses to the Festival site. 

 
3.  special activities prior to 

the festival for review and approval by the Troy City Council. 
 

4. y of Troy shall supply no 
funding for any portion of the Troy Daze Festival operations. 

c
 
WHEREAS, Returning spo
o
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council RETURNS sponsorship 
T

If the Festival will be held on City-owned property, adequate liability insurance coverag
as determined by the City of Troy be acquired by the spons

The Troy City Council will set the hours of operation and other measures as indicated in 
Chapter 26.17 et. seq. of the Municipal Code to better en

The Troy Daze Committee will submit a listing of activities and

Unless otherwise determined by the Troy City Council, the Cit



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

 
5. 

 the 

Assistant City Manager for Finance and Administration and the Troy Daze Committee.  

r Proposed Resolution C

The Troy Community Foundation will pay the City of Troy a percentage of the actual 
revenues generated by the Festival, equal to the actual costs of all park ground and 
equipment rental fees; all security time spent by the Troy Police and Fire Departments; 
and all maintenance costs incurred by the various City departments as agreed to by
City of Troy and the Troy Daze Committee.  Said percentage of revenues shall be 
determined by an audit conducted by an independent auditing firm as selected by the 

 
O
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council has determined that operation of the Troy Daze Festival has run 
moothly since the City of Troy was asked to assume sponsorship; and  

 the Festival should stay with the 
ity of Troy for various safety, security and financial reasons;  

onsorship of the 
roy Daze Festival until such time as determined by the Troy City Council. 

o: 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
em 9 “E”.  

-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 

s
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council has determined that operation of
C
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy shall MAINTAIN sp
T
 
Yes: 
N
 

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. 
It
 
E
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-01- 

econded by 

_____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
onsent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 

o: 

Moved by 
S
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) 
C
 
Yes: 
N
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 

ESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of January 8, 2007 

(s):  None Submitted 

Resolution #2007-01-  
 
R
be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option –a  

ution of Water and Sewer Bills         Printing/Distrib  

uggested Resolution
 
S  

nd Distribution of 
ater and Sewer Bills was awarded to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Automated 

HEREAS, On February 6, 2006, the first of three one-year renewal options of the contract 

HEREAS, Automated Computer Methods, Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew for 
ditions; 

lus the actual cost of first class postage, under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions 

 
) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Liquid Calcium 

Resolution #2007-01- 
 
WHEREAS, On March 21, 2005 a one-year contract to provide Printing a
W
Computer Methods, Inc of McHenry, IL (Resolution #2005-03-123-E-5);  
 
W
was approved (Resolution #2006-02-037-E-4b); and 
 
W
the second of the three one-year renewal periods under the same prices, terms, and con
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract for the second 
additional year is hereby EXERCISED with Automated Computer Methods, Inc. to provide laser 
Printing/Distribution of Water and Sewer Bills for an estimated total cost of $11,616.00 per year, 
p
as the original contract, to expire April 30, 2008. 

b
Chloride          

 
Suggested Resolution 

 20, 2006, a one-year contract with an option to renew for one additional 
ear to provide liquid calcium chloride was awarded to sole bidder, South Huron Industrial, Inc., 

HEREAS, South Huron Industrial, Inc. has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew 
under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 

Resolution #2007-01- 
 
WHEREAS, On March
y
of Flat Rock, MI; and 
 
W



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew this contract is hereby EXERC
with South Huron Industrial, Inc., of Flat Rock, MI, to provide liquid calcium chloride for an 
estimated total cost of $36

ISED 

,575.00, under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions 
xpiring March 31, 2008. 

-5 Continued Participation in the Administration of School District Elections 

e
 
E
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-01- 

 
 to participate in school elections for the 

istricts, which fall within the municipality boundary;  

sibility of 
oordinator of Elections for all of the school districts within Oakland County;  

mediate School Districts, and Oakland 
ommunity College all fall within the City of Troy; and 

 voter to participate in the administration 
f elections for the above-mentioned school districts; 

 
mediate and Macomb 

termediate School Districts, and Oakland Community College. 

UBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 

 Rules of 
rocedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 

EGULAR BUSINESS: 

 
WHEREAS, The Election Consolidation Legislation enacted December of 2003 requires that a
municipality’s elected bodies enter into an agreement
d
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has determined that they will assume the respon
C
 
WHEREAS, Avondale, Birmingham, Bloomfield, Lamphere, Royal Oak, Troy, Warren 
Consolidated, Oakland Intermediate and Macomb Inter
C
 
WHEREAS, It is in the best interest for the City of Troy
o
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy OPTS TO PARTICIPATE in the 
administration of the School District Elections for the Avondale, Birmingham, Bloomfield,
Lamphere, Royal Oak, Troy, Warren Consolidated, Oakland Inter
In
 
P
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the
P
 
R
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 

d before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 

F-1 

satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forwar

Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Ratification of Board of Review 
Appointment: b) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authority 
(LDFA) c) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Zoning Appeals; 
Election Commission; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; and Municipal Building 

te will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
oard or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 

he following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 

( ard of Review Mayoral Appointment from December 18, 2006

Authority     
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vo
b
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
T
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
a)  Ratification of Bo   

 
Suggested Resolution 

07-01- 
oved by Schilling

Resolution #20
M   

n #2006-12-382, Moved by 
roomfield, Seconded by Lambert and approved unanimously, for the Mayoral appointment of the 

following person to serve on the Board of Review as indicated: 
 

oard of Review

Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES Resolutio
B

B
Mayor, Consent of Council (3) – 3 Year Term 
 

s Hatch Jame Term Expires 01/31/10  
 
Yes:   

ntments

No:  
  
(b)  Mayoral Appoi   

 Resolution
 
Suggested
Resolution #2007-01- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

Moved by 

APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 

ocal Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 

Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
L
Appointed by Mayor (5) – 4 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 06/30/07 
 
Yes: 

ppointments

No: 
 
(c)  City Council A
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-01- 

oved by 

ESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 

dvisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 

M
Seconded by 
 
R
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
A
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) –

(Alternate)

 3 Year Terms 
 

Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/09 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Planning Commission Rep) Term Expires 01/31/08  
 

(Planning Commission Alternate Rep) Term Expires 01/31/08  
 
Election Commission
Appointed by Council (2-Regular; 1-Charter) – 1 Year Term 

(Democrat)
 

Term Expires 01/31/08  
(NOTE: Received letters of recommendation from the Democrat & Republican Parties of Oakland County) 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
David C. Anderson (Republican)  01/31/08 
Timothy Dewan (Democrat) Requests Reappointment- 01/31/07 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk (Charter)  
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council  (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 09/30/2007 
 
 Unexpired Term 09/30/2008 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Carolyn Almassian 01/31/06 
Glenn Clark  (Appt’d to BZA-Letter of resignation pending) 01/31/09 
Victor Freliga 01/31/08 
John M. Lamerato (Asst City Manager/Finance & Admin.) 01/31/09 
Frank Shier 01/31/08 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 2007 Poverty Exemption Guidelines 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That pursuant to MCL 211.7u, the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES the proposed “Poverty Exemption Guidelines” for 2007, as presented by the City 
Assessor in a memorandum dated January 5, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

F-3 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Stone Haven Park Site Condominium, 
South of Wattles, West of Crooks, Section 20 – R-1B   

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the preliminary site condominium 
plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium 
known as Stone Haven Park Site Condominium, located south of Wattles, west of Crooks, in 
Section 20, including 9 home sites, within the R-1B zoning district, being 4.285 acres in size. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4  Disposal/Sale of Excess Property 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy endeavors to attain the highest and best land 
use, effective growth control measures and to enhance the health, safety and welfare of the 
community; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 12 of the Troy City Charter requires that…”in all sales or purchases in 
excess of $10,000, (a) the sales or purchases shall be approved by the City Council, (b) sealed 
bids shall be obtained, except where the City Council shall determine that an emergency exists 
or that the public interest will be best served without obtaining sealed bids…”; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy MAY DETERMINE 
that the public interest will best be served without obtaining sealed bids for the sale of remnant 
parcels which remain after required right-of-way or excess property is taken when a purchase 
agreement is offered to the City of Troy by a prospective buyer which: 
 

1. Has submitted evidence of ownership or control of an assembly of adjoining land of 
sufficient size so as to achieve what is believed to be the best possible development as 
determined by the City Council after review and recommendation from the City Manager. 

 
2. Has submitted a conceptual site plan, which has been drawn to sufficient detail to 

indicate any and all features such as setbacks, parking and access, storm water 
detention and building height, which are governed by codes of the City of Troy. 

 
3. Is accompanied by a petition for rezoning, if necessary, in compliance with the Master 

Land Use Plan of the City of Troy as being the most appropriate land use. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

4. Commits the prospective buyer to a purchase price of at least a value established by an 
appraiser named by the Real Estate and Development Department of the City of Troy.  

 
5. During the site plan review, site plan is accompanied by architectural renderings of all 

buildings along with a description of building materials to permit evaluation by building 
quality.  

 
6. Is accompanied by a draft of proposed deed restrictions prepared by the City of Troy 

which will be imposed upon the purchaser of the City-owned property. 
 

7. Nothing in this resolution relieves the Purchaser/Developer of their obligation to adhere 
to any and all City Ordinances and development standards. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That staff will PROVIDE an analysis of the zoning and 
PRESENT the remnant parcel(s) to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee to review for 
possible use as parks prior to Council action on the offer to purchase; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Council RETAINS discretionary authority to 
determine the applicability of this policy. 
 
Yes: 
No:  
 
F-5  Adoption of Amended Goals and Objectives 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council ADOPTS the following amended goals and objectives, 
based on staff’s correlation of goals with the Troy Futures Report: 
 
Goals: 
 
 Minimize cost and increase efficiency and effectiveness of City government 
 Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
 Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
 Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs 
 Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual strategic planning process 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community  

 
Objectives: 
 
 Enhance a two-way flow of public information 
 Address citizen input and concerns 
 Maintain high level of service 
 Promote culture of professionalism 
 Determine appropriate staffing levels 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

 Expand electronic functions 
 Prioritize capital projects 
 Promote economic development and redevelopment 
 Uphold fiscal integrity 
 Recognize the heritage and diversity of our community and the people that live and work 

here and encourage their participation 
 Enhance community livability through more integration of business, educational, recreational 

and other redevelopment philosophies 
 Revamp regulatory documents to be more flexible to take changing styles of the times into 

account 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Michigan Next Energy Exemptions – February 26, 2007  
b) Street Vacation Application (File Number: SV 188) – A Section of Alley Located North of 

Big Beaver between Louis and Troy, Section 22 – February 26, 2007  
c) Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-724) – Proposed Spa Renaissance, North Side of 

Big Beaver between Troy and Louis, Section 22 – R-1E to O-1 – February 26, 2007    
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 5, 2006  
b) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 5, 2006 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – December 6, 2006  
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – December 6, 2006 
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 7, 2006  
f) Planning Commission/Draft – December 12, 2006  
g) Planning Commission/Final – December 12, 2006  
h) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 13, 2006 
i) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – December 19, 2006  
j) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 19, 2006  
k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 2, 2007 
l) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – January 4, 2007  
m) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 8, 2007 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) 

Building Department – Permits Issued July through December, 2006  
Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of December, 2006  

b) 
c) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Year 2006  

o  d) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Congress of Cities and Exp
e) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb 

Auctioneering, LLC – October and November, 2006  
f) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2006  

) Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Leadership Meeting  g
 

  J-3 Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Robert Smith Regarding the Efforts of Officer Villerot    
 

-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted J
 

-5  Calendar J
 
J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Sidewalk 

Maintenance Program 
 

TUDY ITEMS:  S
 

dy Items Submitted K-1 No Stu
   

UBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items P
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 22, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:    
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – Troy v. Premium Construction. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, February 5, 2007 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 7, 2007 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ........ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 26, 2007 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 28, 2007 (Liquor Violation Hearing)....... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 5, 2007............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, March 19, 2007........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 2, 2007 ............................................................... Regular City Council 

 



Service Commendation 
PEGGY ADAMS 

 
WHEREAS, Peggy began her employment with the City of Troy in 1980 as a Clerk-
Typist with the Police Department. After three years she transferred to the Treasurer’s 
Office. In 1999 Peggy became an Account Clerk I and in 2004 she was promoted to an 
Account Clerk II both within the Treasurer’s Office; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy and the Treasurer’s Office have been privileged to have 
Peggy as an employee. The dedication she showed to both her job and the city 
demonstrates what an outstanding person she is; and  
 
WHEREAS, Peggy retired from the City of Troy on January 12, 2007 after 27 years of 
dedicated service; and 
 
WHEREAS, Peggy looks forward to having more time with her husband Tim, their 
children and grandchildren, and other family members who are spread across Michigan 
and Ohio; and 
 
WHEREAS, Peggy will keep busy in her retirement by partaking in her favorite hobbies, 
traveling and camping, reading, gardening and just relaxing.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this 
opportunity to express its appreciation to Peggy Adams for her many contributions to 
the betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of 
themselves, City management, and the citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of 
prosperity, good health and happiness to Peggy during her retirement years. 
 
Presented the 22nd day of January 2007. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



Service Commendation 
MARY ANN NEMSHICK 

 
 
WHEREAS, Mary Ann began her career with the City of Troy in 1987 as a part-time employee in 
the Engineering Department. This experience introduced her to a pleasant and friendly 
environment and convinced her that she would enjoy a career with the City.  
 
WHEREAS, In 1988 Mary Ann was hired as a full-time Clerk-Typist for the Water Department and 
in 1991 she transferred to the Public Works Department as an Account Clerk. Mary Ann moved to 
her dream job as Secretary at the Library in 1995.  Throughout her career she is very proud of 
what the Troy Library has achieved and fortunate to have had the opportunity to be a part of it; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy and the Troy Library have been privileged to have Mary Ann as an 
employee.  She has always showed great dedication to her job and the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mary Ann retired from the City of Troy on January 19, 2007 after 20 years of 
dedicated service; and 
 
WHEREAS, In her retirement, Mary Ann will have more time to spend with her husband Larry and 
their three children Robert, Laura and David. She also plans to travel extensively; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mary Ann will always have fond memories of her life at the City of Troy and thanks all 
of her friends there for making that possible; and   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this 
opportunity to express its appreciation to Mary Ann Nemshick for her many contributions to the 
betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City 
management, and the citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health and 
happiness to Mary Ann during her retirement years. 
 
Presented the 22nd day of January 2007. 
 
 
  

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



Service Commendation 
MARLENE STRUCKMAN 

 
WHEREAS, Marlene began her employment with the City of Troy in the Building Department as a 
Housing and Zoning Inspector in 1990 after working for the City of Pontiac as a Housing Inspector 
for nine years.  Marlene was promoted to an Inspector Supervisor in April 2005, a position she 
held until her retirement; and  
 
WHEREAS, In 2005 Marlene became the first Troy Housing and Zoning Inspector to be certified 
by the International Code Council as a Property Maintenance and Housing Inspector. She has also 
been active in the Michigan Association of Code Enforcement Officers, most recently serving as 
their secretary; and   
 
WHEREAS, Marlene has always been helpful to the residents of Troy. Her personnel file is full of 
letters of appreciation from citizens thanking her for help and assistance; and  
 
WHEREAS, Marlene retired from the City of Troy on January 19, 2007 after 17 years of 
dedicated service; and 
 
WHEREAS, Marlene has been married to her husband Tom for over 36 years. They have two 
children; a daughter Jamie and son Michael, and daughter-in-law Becky; and   
 
WHEREAS, In her retirement Marlene will continue visiting craft shows, traveling in their 5th wheel 
camper, and spending time with her dachshund dogs Charlie and Max; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this 
opportunity to express its appreciation to Marlene Struckman for her many contributions to the 
betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City 
management, and the citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health and 
happiness to Marlene during her retirement years. 
 
Presented the 22nd day of January 2007. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01c



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
December 13, 2006 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Troy Daze Festival 
 
 
Background: 
 
 At the December 3rd meeting, several members of the Troy Daze Advisory Board submitted their 

resignations. 
 
 Mayor Louise Schilling suggested that a solution to challenges addressed by the former members 

of the Troy Daze Advisory Board could be worked out through discussions between the parties. 
 
 Former members of the Troy Daze Board contacted Council Members Wade Fleming and Dave 

Lambert to meet and discuss the future of the Festival.  At that meeting it was suggested that the 
members meet with Mayor Schilling for continued discussions. 

 
 Former members of the Troy Daze Board stated that they can now obtain affordable insurance 

coverage, and suggested that the operation of the Festival be returned to a newly formed private 
organization. 

 
 As history, in 1988 the Troy Daze Committee (a private organization) asked the Troy City Council 

to take over operations of the Troy Daze Festival, as the committee could not get affordable 
insurance coverage to continue the Festival. 

 
 Since 1988, the Festival has been conducted under the auspices of the City of Troy, meaning that 

Troy assumed all fiduciary and liability obligations associated with the Festival. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Return of the operation to a private committee would save the City of Troy an estimated $197,000 

in budgeted expenditures. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



Troy Daze Festival 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  December 13, 2006 

Page Two 
 
 
 
 Conversely, the 2006-2007 budget indicates the Troy Daze Festival would generate approximately 

$180,000 in operating revenues.  Consequently, the City of Troy could eliminate the possibility of 
operating losses from the budget. 

 
 By not having to be in on the planning, marketing, public relations and other ancillary functions 

that are performed by staff, the City of Troy could save hundreds of personnel hours and resultant 
monetary costs. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 If the Festival is to be held on City-owned property, adequate liability insurance coverage as 

determined by the City of Troy has to be obtained by the sponsoring agency, naming the City of 
Troy as an additional insured party for the Festival. 

 
 The Troy City Council will set the hours of operation and other measures as indicated in Chapter 

26.17 et. seq. of the Municipal Code to better ensure safety and security for the surrounding 
houses and businesses to the Festival site. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Returning the Troy Daze Festival to private sponsorship could give more of a volunteer ownership 

feel to the Festival. 
 
 Private ownership does away with City of Troy mandates such as bidding for contracts; financial 

oversight by bonded agents; and, general authority over security operations. 
 
 Due to the fact that the size and scope of the Festival is significantly larger than any other use of 

any park facilities, special processes will have to be implemented to provide for use of park 
facilities and equipment. 

 
Options: 
 
 The Council can return ownership of the Festival to a private sector group. 

 
 The Council can maintain sponsorship of the Festival under the auspices of the City of Troy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLN/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\12.18.06 - Troy Daze Festival 













CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 8, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 8, 2007, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 P.M. 
 
Cliff Johnson – Woodside Bible Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine  
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentation:  Newly elected State Representative Marty Knollenberg provided City 
Council, City Staff and members of the public with an introductory presentation. 

     
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Resolution to the State of Michigan Regarding Group Day Care Homes – Referred 
by Council Member Broomfield  

 
Resolution #2007-01-001 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES INDEFINITELY the Resolution to the 
State of Michigan Regarding Group Day Care Homes – Referred by Council Member 
Broomfield. 
 
Yes:  All-7 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 8, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

D-2 Appointment to Boards and Committees: City Council Appointments: Board of 
Zoning Appeals 

 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Tom Krent Unexpired Term Expires 04/30/09  
 
Proposed Resolution #1 to Amend Appointment to Boards and Committees: Board of 
Zoning Appeals 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Proposed Resolution – City Council 
Appointments to the Board of Zoning Appeals to include the name of Glenn Clark in the 
nominations for Board of Zoning Appeals member for the unexpired term of April 30, 2009. 
 
Proposed Resolution #2 to Amend Appointment to Boards and Committees: Board of 
Zoning Appeals 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Proposed Resolution – City Council 
Appointments to the Board of Zoning Appeals to include the name of Michael Bartnik for the 
nominations for the Board of Zoning Appeals member for the unexpired term of April 30, 2009. 
 
Vote on Resolution #2 to Amend Appointment to Boards and Committees: Board of 
Zoning Appeals 
 
Resolution #2007-01-002 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Proposed Resolution – City Council 
Appointments to the Board of Zoning Appeals to include the name of Michael Bartnick for the 
nominations for the Board of Zoning Appeals member for the unexpired term of April 30, 2009. 
 
Yes: All-7 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 8, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

 
Vote on Resolution #1 to Amend Appointment to Boards and Committees: Board of 
Zoning Appeals 
 
Resolution #2007-01-003 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Proposed Resolution – City Council 
Appointments to the Board of Zoning Appeals to include the name of Glenn Clark in the 
nominations for Board of Zoning Appeals member for the unexpired term of 04/30/09. 
 
Yes:  Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No:  Beltramini, Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2007-01-004 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Clark Bartnick Krent 
Fleming  Schilling Stine 
Howrylak Beltramini  
Lambert   
Broomfield    

 
Glenn Clark was appointed to the Board of Zoning Appeals to fill the unexpired term of April 
30, 2009. 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-01-005 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items E-2 and E-4b, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
Yes: All-7 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 8, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles          
 
Resolution #2007-01-005-E-4-a 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase seven (7) 2007 Ford Crown Victoria blue and white 
patrol cars and three (3) 2007 Ford Crown Victoria solid color command cars from Signature 
Ford of Owosso, MI, is hereby APPROVED through a Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement for an estimated total cost of $206,560.00. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: US Communities Contract – The Home Depot – 

Cabinets and Countertops for Fire Station #1 Kitchen Renovation          
 
Resolution #2007-01-005-E-4-c 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase cabinets and countertops for Fire Station One is 
hereby APPROVED through US Communities Cooperative Contract #05091 with The Home 
Depot for an estimated total cost of $19,570.00. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: AEPA Cooperative - Copiers          
 
Resolution #2007-01-005-E-4-d 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide copiers from Konica Minolta Albin on an ongoing basis 
is hereby APPROVED through the Association of Educational Purchasing Agencies (AEPA) 
Cooperative Contract IFB #005 established by the AEPA bid process and Oakland Schools 
contract #06-0011 under the same pricing structure, terms, and conditions, which expires 
February 28, 2007, with any copier agreement executed by then extending for a period of two 
additional twelve (12) month periods.   
 
E-5 Milano Development Company, Inc. v. City of Troy, et. al 
 
Resolution #2007-01-005-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Milano Development Company, 
Inc. v. City of Troy, et. al and to PAY all expenses and to RETAIN any necessary expert 
witnesses to adequately represent the City. 
 
E-6 Approval of Contract No. 06-5632 with MDOT for Right-of-Way Acquisition for the 

Reconstruction and Widening of Rochester Road, Barclay to Trinway – Project No. 
02.206.5 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 8, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

Resolution #2007-01-005-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 06-5632 between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department 
of Transportation for right-of-way acquisition for Rochester, Barclay to Trinway, Project No. 
02.206.5, is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-7 Approval of Subcontract No. 06-5632/S1 with Greenstar & Associates, LLC for 

Right-of-Way Services for the Reconstruction and Widening of Rochester Road, 
Barclay to Trinway – Project No. 02.206.5 

 
Resolution #2007-01-005-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Subcontract No. 06-5632/S1, between the City of Troy and Greenstar & 
Associates, LLC for right-of-way services for the reconstruction of Rochester Road, between 
Barclay to Trinway is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy not to exceed 
$75,000.00, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the subcontract, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting.  
 
E-8 Contract Addendum No. 2 – Contract 06-3, Ferry Drain Restoration Project 
 
Resolution #2007-01-005-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Addendum No. 2 to Contract No. 06-3, Ferry Drain Restoration Project, is 
hereby APPROVED to D & J Lawn & Snow, Inc., 22750 Macomb Industrial Drive, Clinton Twp., 
MI, 48036 at the unit prices contained in the contract and the total amount authorized is  
$99,692.45 and includes the previous authorized contract amount of $76,882.25, the 10% 
contingency as per the previous contract award resolution, and the $15,058.97 amount for 
which Addendum No. 2 exceeds the 10% contingency.   
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2007-01-006 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of December 18, 
2006 be APPROVED as corrected. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Flynn Park Sports Lighting          
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 8, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

Resolution #2007-01-007 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish a new sport lighting system on four (4) ball diamonds at 
Flynn Park is hereby AWARDED to the best value proposal submitted by G&B Electrical 
Company of Bloomfield Hills, MI, as a result of a life cycle costing analysis at an estimated cost 
of $385,000.00, as listed on the bid tabulation opened November 17, 2006, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if additional work is required that could not be foreseen, such 
additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost or 
$38,500.00.   
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Stine  
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-3 Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment  
 
(a) Transfer of License 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the consent judgment between Hooters of Troy, Inc. and the City of Troy is 
hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That upon the execution of the consent judgment by the Court, 
the request from Hooters of Troy, Inc., (a Georgia Corporation) to transfer ownership of a 2005 
Class C licensed business with outdoor service (1 area), and new Entertainment Permit located 
at 2950 Rochester Road Troy, MI 48083 Oakland County from Sign of the Beefcarver, Inc., be 
APPROVED. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 8, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES 
an agreement with Hooters of Troy, Inc., (a Georgia Corporation) to transfer ownership of a 
2005 Class C licensed business with outdoor service (1 area), and new Entertainment Permit 
located at 2950 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County from Sign of the Beefcarver, Inc., 
and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2007-01-008 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent 
Judgment until the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, February 26, 2007. 
 
Yes:  All-7 
 
F-2 Norma Robertson v. City of Troy  
 
Resolution #2007-01-009 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by  Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Norma Robertson v. City of Troy 
and to PAY necessary costs and expenses and to RETAIN any necessary expert witnesses to 
adequately represent the City.  
 
Yes:  All-7 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
   
G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 8, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – September 13, 2006  
b) Building Code Board of Appeals Special/Final – October 18, 2006   
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – November 8, 2006  
d) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – November 14, 2006  
e) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – November 14, 2006  
f) Downtown Development Authority/Final – November 15, 2006 
g) Library Advisory Board/Final – November 16, 2006  
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – November 21, 2006  
i) Troy Youth Council/Final – November 29, 2006   
j) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 6, 2006  
k) Troy Youth Council/Draft – December 20, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC 83rd Congress of 

Cities and Exposition  
b) City Attorney’s Office – 2006 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Tom Howe Regarding the Assistance Received 

Locating a Family Heirloom Rifle  
b) Letter of Appreciation to Tonni Bartholomew from Secretary of StateTerri Lynn Land 

Regarding the 2006 General Election  
c) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Clackamas County Sheriff’s Office in Appreciation of 

the Participation in the 4th Annual National Family Violence Apprehension Detail  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted   
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-6  Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Request for Federal 
Aid Funding for FY 2010 and 2011 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 8, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

J-7  Communication from Troy Residents Requesting a Change to the Ordinance 
Regarding Chaining of Dogs – Additional Documentation Available for Viewing at 
the City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 

 
Noted and Filed 

 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2007-01-010 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business, to allow discussion of item L-1 before Study Items K-1 and 
K-2. 
 
Yes: All-7   
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:    
 
Resolution #2007-01-011 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Ltd. v. City 
of Troy, et. al. 
 
Yes: All-7 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  Council Responses to City Manager’s Questionnaire 
 
K-2  Correlation of Council Goals with Futures Report  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 10:11 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 10:15 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 11:00 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 11:05 P.M. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 8, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:30 P.M. 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 
 
January 12, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Exercise Renewal Option –                         
   Printing/Distribution of Water & Sewer Bills 
 
 
Background: 
 
 On March 21, 2005 a one- year contract to provide Laser Printing and Distribution of the City of 

Troy Water and Sewer Bills was approved with an option to renew for three (3) additional one (1) 
year periods to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Automated Computer Methods Inc. of 
McHenry, IL. (Council Resolution #2005-03-123-E-5).   

 
 

DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE 
CUSTOMER BILLING SUMMARY:  
  Laser Print, Water/Sewer Bill $.050 
  Fold, Insert, Sort & Mail $.020 
  Printing - #9 Reply Envelope $.017 
  Printing - #10 Envelope $.0185 
  
COST PER BILL: $.1055 

 
 
 On February 6, 2006, City Council approved the first of three one-year renewal options of the 

contract. (Council Resolution #2006-02-037-E-4b).   
    
 A market survey conducted by the Purchasing Department indicates the materials market for 

paper products will continue to increase in the coming year and concurs with the recommendation 
to exercise the option to renew for one additional year.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funds are available from the Water Department operating budgets.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



January 12, 2007 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Renewal Option - Printing/Distribution of Water & Sewer Bills 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 ITB-COT 04-62 for the production, printing and distribution of the City of Troy Water and Sewer 

bills was competitively bid in accordance with Chapter 7 of the City Code.   
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Printing and distribution of the City of Troy Water and Sewer bills, accurately within our processing 

time requirements, and then delivered to the post office.  (Goal I & III). 
 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends the City exercise the option to renew for the second additional 

option year with Automated Computer Methods for an estimated total cost of $11,616.00, plus the 
actual cost of first class postage, under the same prices, terms and conditions, to expire April 30, 
2008. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AT\ S:Murphy’s Review/Agenda 01.22.07 – SR3 – WaterBilling 































 

 
January 12, 2007 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
    Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
    Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
SUBJECT:   Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option –  
    Liquid Calcium Chloride 
 
Background: 
 
 One-year requirement of Liquid Calcium Chloride with an option to renew for one additional year was 

approved by Troy City Council on March 20, 2006. (Resolution #2006-03-143-E-4b) 
 Liquid Calcium Chloride is purchased on an as needed basis throughout the year for dust and ice control. 
 A 1% discount is allowed if invoices are paid within ten days. 
 Purchasing has conducted a market survey and determined the City would not benefit from soliciting 

additional bids. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Drains and Streets Division for snow and ice control for 

local, major and county roads along and in local roads surface maintenance gravel.   
 

Legal Considerations: 
 
 ITB-COT 06-01, one-year requirement of Liquid Calcium Chloride with an option to renew for one additional 

year was competitively bid and opened on February 28, 2006, in accordance with Chapter 7 of the City 
Code. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying services for the 

City of Troy. (Goal I) 
 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends exercising the option to renew for one additional year with South Huron 

Industrial Inc., of Flat Rock, MI at an estimated cost of $36,575.00, under the same prices, terms and 
conditions expiring March 31, 2008. 

 
EF/ S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 1.22.07 SR3 – LiquidCalciumChl Letter 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



















 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

Date  
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Continued Participation in the Administration of School District Elections 
 

  
Background: 
 
 As part of the January 2005 implementation of the Election Consolidation Laws, the City Clerk’s 

Office has served as the Election Coordinator for each school district and the community college 
and Intermediate School Districts (ISD), which fall within the municipal boundaries of the City of 
Troy. The Consolidation Laws require that the agreements to participate in the above manner 
must be executed every two years. 
 
The City of Troy’s participation in the administration of the school district elections is very similar 
to the administration of statewide elections.  The Troy School District is the exception because it 
falls totally within the municipal boundaries. In such cases, the law requires the City Clerk to 
serve as the Election Coordinator. The Troy district responsibilities will mirror those experienced 
by the Clerk’s Office during a local election. The Oakland County Clerk, has in the past, 
facilitated several of the processes. 
 
The election process will be impacted slightly by the Avondale, Birmingham and Royal Oak 
school districts which have moved their election date from May to November.  This action will 
reduce the number of multiple split precincts within Troy and will create a smoother precinct flow 
in those precincts. It should be noted that these moves will place a higher financial burden on the 
remaining school districts utilizing the May date. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The Election Consolidation Laws provide a mechanism to charge back some of the costs to the 

respective school districts. However, straight time labor costs cannot be charged back and will be 
a burden of the City of Troy. As indicated above, three of the school districts will see an elevation 
in the costs to conduct their elections. Most notably will be the Troy School District as there will 
not be a sharing of costs with the Avondale, Birmingham and Royal Oak school districts in 
several of the precincts. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 It is the belief of the Clerk’s Office that there should not be any legal considerations. 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There will be no new policy considerations. 

 
Options: 
 
 While the City of Troy has the ability to opt out from the administration of the school elections, it 

is the belief of the City Clerk’s Office that it is in the best interest of the Troy voter to maintain 
consistency and the quality of elections within the City of Troy by Opting In and agree to 
participate in the coordination of the school elections. The attached resolution has been 
forwarded to City Council for their approval to permit the Troy City Clerk to sign an agreement to 
allow for the participation of the City of Troy in the administration of the Avondale, Birmingham, 
Bloomfield, Lamphere, Royal Oak, Troy, and Warren Consolidated school districts, Oakland 
Community College and the Macomb and Oakland Intermediate School Districts. 

 
 
Approved for Submittal:   
 Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   
 Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 



 

 

 
Date January 16, 2

 
TO: Phillip L. Nels

 
FROM: John M. Lam

Tonni L. Bart
 

SUBJECT: Ratification o
  
Background: 
 
 Section 9.11 of the City Ch

Council, during January o
Review to serve for a thre
year in which the appointm

 The reappointment of Jam
of December 18, 2006 was

 All prior Board of Review a
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial cons

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal conside

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy consid

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Tro

to comply with the provisio
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT 
007 

on, City Manager 

erato, Assistant City Manager, Finance and Administration 
holomew, City Clerk 

f Board of Review Mayoral Appointment from December 18, 2006 

arter states, “the Mayor of the City, with the advice and consent of the 
f each year, shall appoint one-third of the members of the Board of 
e year term, which term shall begin on the first day of February in the 
ent is made.”  
es Hatch to the Board of Review at the Regular City Council meeting 
 brought forward by City Council instead of the Mayor. 
ppointments were properly administered. 

iderations associated with this item. 

rations associated with this item. 

erations associated with this item. 

y City Council ratify the Board of Review appointment of James Hatch 
ns outlined in Section 9.11 of the City Charter. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-01a



 

 
 
January 5, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item – 2007 Poverty Exemption Guidelines 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 MCL 211.7u states: “The real property of persons who in the opinion of the Supervisor (read 

Assessor for Cities) and Board of Review by reason of poverty are unable to contribute toward the 
public charges is exempt from taxation under this act.” 

 
In order to grant a Poverty Exemption, the Michigan Tax Tribunal (MTT) has ordered that each 
community develop a set of guidelines to determine whether the applicant qualifies for a one (1) 
year exemption from property taxes. (The exemption may be re-applied for each year) 
 
The State Tax Commission (STC) has ruled that the Income Guidelines that are used as a portion 
of the guidelines may not be less than the Federal Poverty Guidelines established each year. 
 
As the guidelines include an Assessed Value limit, a Total Asset limit, and possible changes to the 
Income Guidelines, Council is presented with updated guidelines each year for approval. 
 
You may recall that in 2001, and prior to the STC order to use the Federal Poverty Guidelines, 
management had increased the income guidelines previously established by the City Assessor.  
The STC order to use the Federal guidelines starting in 2002, placed our guidelines approximately 
$5,000 higher than the Federal guidelines, in each category. 
 
In 2002, Management then recommended, and Council approved, leaving our guidelines the 
same, until the Federal guidelines ‘catch up’.  We are still averaging more than $3,000 higher in 
each category.  Council has not changed the Income guidelines to this point. 
 
The Assessed Value limit has increased each year by the average level of increase of the 
Residential Class for that year.  This year the Residential Class will show an average reduction in 
value of 2.82%.  This will lower the Assessed Value limit from $115,640 to $112,380. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



2007 POVERTY EXEMPTION GUDIELINES MEMO PAGE 2 
 
The total asset limit, which includes the home (but not an automobile), would increase from 
$270,650 to $273,120.  This calculation includes the reduction in the average Assessed Value, 
and an increase in the remaining asset level of 3.7% (the established State Consumer Price Index 
for 2007). 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There were 21 exemptions applied for in 2006 at the March Board of Review.  Of these, 

seventeen (17) were granted exemptions totaling $1,067,990 in Taxable Value (T/V).  This 
amounts to $10,017.15 in exempted City taxes (in 2005, 17 exemptions accounted for $984,710 in 
T/V and $9,306 in City taxes).  

 
In the past 4 years, residents have been allowed to apply for Poverty Exemptions at the July and 
December Boards of Review.  Generally a couple would come in July, and none in December. 
 
This year, there was one (1) exemptions granted at the July Board, and two (2) at the December 
Board.  These three (3) additional exemptions accounted for exempted Taxable Value of 
$198,950, and exempted City taxes of $1,876.99. 
  
The total loss of City taxes for Poverty Exemptions in 2006 was $11,894.14.  This is average for 
most recent years. 

  
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The guidelines are required by the MTT and STC.  The attached guidelines meet the requirements 

of these rulings. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The guidelines are a State mandated requirement.  They may conform to Council Goal #5, 

“Protect life and property”. 
 
Options: 
 
 Council must adopt Poverty Guidelines.  Council may adopt the guidelines as presented, or 

modify them 
 
 
NL/nl G:\Poverty Exemptions\2007\PovertyMemo01.05.07.doc 



 
POVERTY EXEMPTION GUIDELINES 

INCOME STANDARDS 2007  
 
 
The following are the Poverty thresholds as of 12-31-06 for use in setting poverty  
exemption guidelines for 2007 assessments: 
 
 
Number of Persons Poverty  
Residing in Homestead Threshold 
 
1 person                                                                  13,959 
2 persons     16,531 
3 persons 18,470 
4 persons    22,761 
5 persons    26,419 
6 persons    29,636 
7 persons    33,347 
8 persons    36,704  
9 persons (or more) add 3,180 for each additional person     

 



 
CITY OF TROY 

POVERTY EXEMPTION GUIDELINES – 2007  
 

MCL 211.7u The real property of persons who in the judgment of the 
Supervisor and Board of Review by reason of poverty are unable to 
contribute toward the public charges is exempt from taxation under this 
Act. 

 
   The City of Troy’s standard for approving an exemption under the statute is 
based on an individual determination of hardship. 
 
   This is an exemption from taxes.  If you claim poverty under the statute, you 
must file your claim with a Poverty Exemption Affidavit.  This exemption is good 
for one year. 
 
STANDARD #1 Applicants must file a Poverty Exemption Affidavit in order to    

be considered for any exemption.  Documentation such as, 
Income Tax Forms, W-2 Forms, Deeds or Land Contracts 
and personal identification is mandatory, and must be 
attached to the Affidavit. 

 
STANDARD #2 A Poverty Exemption will not be granted if the household 

income is greater than the Income Standards Guideline. 
 

STANDARD #3 A Poverty Exemption will not be granted if the Assessed 
Value of the home exceeds $112,380. 

 
STANDARD #4 Applicants total assets cannot exceed $273,120.  This 

includes the value of your home. 
 
 
 
*The Board of Review may require a home audit and inspection, done by the 
Assessing Department, as part of the exemption process. 
 
* The income of every person residing at the home must be reported. 
 
 



 
POVERTY EXEMPTION AFFIDAVIT (for 2007 A/V Year) 

 
_________________________  ___________________ 
(Address)                        (Sidwell #) 

 
1. Household Income:  List all prior year income from: 

a)Wages/Tips                                 ________________ 
b) Social Security                            ________________ 
c) Soc. Sec. for resident minors       ________________ 
d) Pensions                                      ________________ 
e) Interest/Dividends                       ________________ 
f) Unemployment Compensation   ________________ 
g) Sub-Pay                                      ________________ 
h) Workman's Compensation         ________________ 
i) Aid to Dependent Children          ________________ 
j) Medical Disability Benefits         ________________ 
k) Lottery/Contest/Raffle               ________________ 
l) Annuities                                    ________________ 
m) Governmental Assistance          ________________ 
n) Insurance/Lawsuit Payouts        ________________ 
o) Alimony/Child Support              ________________ 
p) Rental Income                            ________________ 

 
2. Supplemental Assistance:   List monthly amount of: 

a) Food Stamps                              ________________ 
b) Surplus Food                              ________________ 
c) Transportation                            ________________ 

 
3. Residence Information: 

Is your home paid for?         Yes____    No____ 
  If No: 
  What is your mortgage/land contract balance? ___________ 
  What is your monthly payment?                        ___________ 
  Who holds your mortgage/land contract?          ___________ 
  Do you own any other property?             Yes______  No____ 
  If Yes: Attach a copy of your last tax bill. 

 
4. Employment information: 

Are you or your spouse currently employed? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
Are your or your spouse unable to work (disability, etc.) ? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
If Yes: Is this condition permanent? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
Provide medical documentation of the disability. 



 
 
5. Children/Relatives/Boarders: 

How many children, relatives, or non-related boarders share 
your home?                                              _____________________ 
Do any of the above, or anyone outside of your home, contribute 
Financially to your living expenses?           Yes ___   No___ 
If Yes:  How much:   per month __________  year_____________ 
 

6. Transportation: 
Do you own any automobiles?                           Yes____    No____ 
If Yes:  Please provide the following information: 

 
Year & Make  Price to you    Balance          Monthly payment 
____________        __________    ___________   _____________ 
____________        __________    ___________   _____________ 

 
 
7. Additional Assets: 

Please provide information about any additional assets listed. 
Checking Account:       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Savings Account:       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
I.R.A.         Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Keogh         Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Deferred Comp        Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Annuities        Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Stocks/Bonds/Funds      Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Money Market       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Treasury Bills       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Savings Bonds       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 

 
 
8. Attach copies of the following: 

a) Federal Income Form 
b) State Income Tax Form 
c) Property Tax Credit Form 
d) W-2 Forms 
e) Copy of Deed or Land Contract 
f) Identification: Driver's License 
g) A listing of your household living expenses for the prior year.   
(examples: heat, electric, insurance, etc.) 

 
You must provide proof of income and other records of all residents 
of the dwelling to be considered for an exemption. 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
I (We), __________________________________________[print name(s)] 

the undersigned, do hereby affirm that the above information is, 
to the best of my (our) knowledge, true. 
______________________________ 
(Signed) 
______________________________ 
(Signed) 
 

Subscribed and sworn to me this _____ day of _________,   _______. 
My commission expires________________ 
Notary Public   ___________________________ 

 
APPROVED:     NOT APPROVED: 
Assessor:  _______________ Assessor:              ___________ 
Board Chairperson __________ Board Chairperson___________ 
Board Member_______________ Board Member      ___________ 
Board Member_______________ Board Member      ___________ 

 
Year______ Assessment________  Board of Review A/V________ 

 
For a March Board of Review Appeal, please submit by March 13 
For a July Board of Review Appeal, please submit by July 13 
For a December Board of Review Appeal, please submit by 
December 7.  

 



 1

 
 
January 15, 2007 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Stone Haven Park Site Condominium, South of 

Wattles, West of Crooks, Section 20 – R-1B  
 
 
Background: 
 

• The Planning Commission recommended approval of Stone Haven Park Preliminary Site 
Condominium Plan at the January 9, 2007 Regular meeting.  The Planning Commission 
provided two design recommendations to City Management:  
 
1. That the petitioner and the City work together to determine the potential development of 

an access point into Boulan Park. 
2. That the City Engineer explores the option of having construction traffic access the site 

directly from Wattles Road. 
 

• The applicant provided an 8-foot wide concrete sidewalk on the east side of the detention 
basin, abutting unit 7 to the west.  The sidewalk will connect the sidewalk on the south side of 
Provincial Drive with the asphalt bike path in Boulan Park.   

 
• The City Engineer is responsible for determining the appropriate location of construction traffic 

access and will be provided with the Planning Commission design recommendation.  
 

• The applicant is proposing a 9-unit site condominium on a 4.285-acre parcel.  The applicant is 
utilizing the lot averaging option, which allows a 10 percent reduction in lot area, to 13,500 
square feet and a 10 percent reduction in lot width, to 90 feet.   

 
• The proposed development has indirect vehicular access to Wattles and Crooks.  The 

development closes an existing gap in both Provincial Drive and Rothwell Drive and eliminates 
four stub streets.  Provincial Drive and Rothwell Drive are both 60-foot wide public streets. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



 2

• City Management recommends approval of Stone Haven Park Site Condominium application. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• Approval of the site condominium would be consistent with City Council Goal II, Retain and 
attract investment while encouraging development, and Goal VI, Protect life and property. 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan as submitted or with 
conditions. 

 
• City Council can deny the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan. 

 
• City Management recommends approval of the Stone Haven Park Preliminary Site 

Condominium Plan.   
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Stone Haven Park Site Condominium 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Stone Haven Park Site Condo Sec 20\CC Approval Stone Haven Park Site Condo 01 22 07.doc 
  



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.SUBJECT PARCEL



S
TO

N
E

H
AV

E
N

FA
D

I

PROVINCIAL
SALMA

GLENCASTLE

ROTHWELL C
R

O
O

K
S

JEFFERSON

LOCKMOOR

PA
RKST

O
NE 

CT

P
E

N
R

O
S

E

BARILANE

W WATTLES

SITE PLAN REVIEW - SITE CONDOMINIUM
PROPOSED STONE HAVEN PARK
S. SIDE OF WATTLES, W OF CROOKS
9 LOTS PROPOSED, ZONED R-1B 
SEC. 20 

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



S
TO

N
E

H
AV

E
N

FA
D

I

PROVINCIAL
SALMA

GLENCASTLE

ROTHWELL C
R

O
O

K
S

JEFFERSON

LOCKMOOR

PA
RKST

O
NE 

CT

P
E

N
R

O
S

E

BARILANE

W WATTLES

(R-1B)

(C-F)

SITE PLAN REVIEW - SITE CONDOMINIUM
PROPOSED STONE HAVEN PARK
S. SIDE OF WATTLES, W OF CROOKS
9 LOTS PROPOSED, ZONED R-1B 
SEC. 20 

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY





 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
January 12, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manger/Economic Development Services 
 
SUBJECT:   Disposal/Sale of Excess Property 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Last year, City Council requested a review of the City’s policies and procedures for the disposal or 

sale of excess property with: 
 

1. A review of the section of Chapter 12 of the Troy City Charter governing purchases, 
contracts and leases and the process for selling surplus property. 

 
2. A review of the 1985 City Council Resolution and current policies governing the 

disposal/sale of excess right-of-way (remnant parcels); and 
 

3. Recommendations for amendments to City Council Resolution #85-254. 
 
 The remnant parcel presentation was made this past fall by City Staff.   

 
 Attached is the amended Resolution, following the presentation.  The Resolution incorporates staff 

recommended amendments and Council directed modifications. 
 
 Also attached is a sample report that will be provided when an offer to purchase is presented to 

Council for consideration. 
   
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Parcels will be sold based on an appraisal prepared and reviewed by appraisers certified by the 

State of Michigan. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



Legal Considerations: 
 
 None 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 It has been the City’s policy to sell remnant parcels to encourage new developments. (Goal II & 

IV) 
 Sale of remnant parcels and excess right-of-way returns these parcels to the tax roll. (Goal II) 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bids, purchase agreements or 

purchase requests. 
 
 
 
 



Property Profile 
88-20-01-126-016 

 
 
 

Location: 
 

South side of South Blvd., 
East of John R 

Size: 
 4.35 Acres 

Zoning: R-1D, review zoning 
change recommended 

Last 
Appraisal 

Date: 
None 

Appraisal 
Value: None 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Remarks: Abuts golf course on the 
West 

Status: Review Zoning 

Parks & Rec 
Advisory 

Board 
Review 

Not reviewed 

 
 
 
 

http://www.ci.troy.mi.us/gisadvanced/viewer.htm?Query=PINDASH='88-20-01-126-016'&QueryZoom=YES


 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT
 

 
TO:     The Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:     Phil Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Adoption of Amended Goals and Objectives 
 
DATE:     January 16, 2007 
 
 
Background: 
 
 At the last meeting, the Council reviewed amendment to adopted Goals and Objectives that are 

intended to better correlate with the recently submitted Troy Futures Report.   
 A listing of previous Goal and Objective language is as follows: 

 
In 2005, the Council adopted the following Goals and Objectives: 
 

o Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government 
o Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
o Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
o Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure 
o Annually improve the strategic plan 
o Protect life and property 

 
Council Objectives include: 
 

o Enhance the flow of information 
o Address citizen input and concerns 
o Maintain high level of service 
o Promote culture of professionalism 
o Determine appropriate staffing levels 
o Expand electronic functions 
o Prioritize capital projects 
o Promote economic development and redevelopment 
o Uphold fiscal integrity 
o Recognize diversity and encourage participation 

 
 The Council gave general consensus of the following Goal and Objective language that is to be 

reviewed at the January 22nd Council meeting. 
 

o Minimize cost and increase efficiency and effectiveness of City Government 
o Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



City Council Action Report 
Adoption of Amended Goals and Objectives 
January 16, 2007 
Page Two 
 
 
 

o Effectively & professionally communicate internally & externally 
o Creatively maintain & improve public infrastructure 
o Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs 
o Annually improve Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the 

annual strategic planning process 
o Protect life and property Enhance the livability and safety of the community  

 
Revisions to Council Objectives include: 
 

o Enhance the a two-way flow of public information 
o Address citizen input and concerns 
o Maintain high level of service 
o Promote culture of professionalism 
o Determine appropriate staffing levels 
o Expand electronic functions 
o Prioritize capital projects 
o Promote economic development and redevelopment 
o Uphold fiscal integrity 
o Recognize the heritage and diversity of our community and the people that live and work here  

   and encourage their participation 
o Enhance community livability through more integration of business, educational, recreational 

 and other (re)development philosophies 
o Revamp regulatory documents to be more flexible to take changing styles of the times into 

   account 
 
Budget Considerations: 
 
 Goals and Objectives set the foundation for all documents including the annual operating budget 

and the City’s Business Plan. 
 Amendments to the Goals and Objectives could create a longer-term need to revise resource 

allocation. 
 
Legal Considerations:
 
 Goals and Objectives carry significance in developing legal responses to how the City implements 

as well as follows their adopted Goals, even though goal language is broad. 
 
Policy Considerations:
 
 Goals and Objectives are the basis for almost every action taken by the City.  Financial, Planning 

and other regulatory documents are based on the Goals and Objectives. 
 Goals and Objectives provide the blueprint for the future.  Actions taken today that are based on 

adopted Goals and Objectives will guide growth and development or redevelopment of the 
community for years to come. 

 



City Council Action Report 
Adoption of Amended Goals and Objectives 
January 16, 2007 
Page Three 
 
 
 
 The amended Goals take a different pathway in recognition of the changes of Troy’s position of a 

stand-alone community to one of a regional player. 
 The amended Goals and Objectives place more emphasis on the transformation of the community 

and on partnerships with the private sector and other public sector entities. 
 
Options:
 
 The Council can adopt the amended Goals and Objectives. 
 The Council can leave the Goals as adopted. 
 The Council can amend the amended Goals and Objectives. 
 The Council can take no action and postpone until a later date. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLN\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\01.22.07 - Adoption of Amended Goals and Objectives 



 

 
 
February 26, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT:   Announcement of Public Hearing – Michigan Next Energy Exemptions 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Michigan Next Energy Authority (MNEA) has certified five (5) companies as Alternative 

Energy Technology Businesses.  MNEA has approved Personal Property Exemptions for these 
companies, subject to verification of the Personal Property by the local Assessor, and subject to 
City Council approval 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations in setting the Public Hearing. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 A Public Hearing must occur within sixty (60) days of receipt of the MNEA resolution(s) (receipt on 

01/09/07). 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations in setting the Public Hearing 

 
Options: 
 
 The Public Hearing must be set within sixty (60) days of receipt of the MNEA resolution(s). 

 
 
NL/nl H:\NextEnergy\2007\MemoSetPH02.05.07 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



You may express your comments regarding this matter by e-mail to XXXXXXXX, by 
writing to this office, or by attending the Public Hearing. 
 

      
 ____________________________________ 

       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk  
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of 
the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City Hall, 

500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, February 26, 2007, at 7:30 p.m., or as 

soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to consider Alternative Energy Personal Property 

Exemptions approved by the Michigan NextEnergy Authority for the following five locations 

in the City of Troy: 

 
T2N, R11E, Section 28 
1100 W Maple, Troy, Michigan United Solar Ovonic Corp. 
 
T2N, R11E, Section 34 
1414 Combermere, Troy, Michigan Ovonic Battery Company 

T2N, R11E Section 28  

1100 W Maple, Troy, Michigan  Energy Conversion Devices 

T2N, R11E, Section 28  

1100 W Maple, Troy, Michigan  United Solar Ovonic Corp. 

T2N, R11E, Section 35 

1857 Technology, Troy, Michigan Compact Power, Inc. 

 

This hearing is held in compliance with Act 198, Public Acts of 1974, as amended. 



OVONIC MEDIA LLC DAVID HIEBER      
2956 WATERVIEW DR OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
ROCHESTER HILLS MI 48309 250 ELIZABETH LAKE #1000W 
 PONTIAC MI 48231 

 

 

UNITED SOLAR OVONIC CORP PATRICK DOHANY 
1100 W MAPLE  OAKLAND CO PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
TROY MI 48084-5352 1200 N TELEGRAPH 49W 

 PONTIAC MI 48231-0049 
 

 

OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
2100 PONTIAC LAKE RD GEORGE A BEE ADMIN CNTR 
WATERFORD MI 48328-2735 2480 OPDYKE 
 BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266 

 

MICHAEL ADAMCZYK WARREN CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 31300 ANITA 
4400 LIVERNOIS WARREN  MI  48093-1697 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

 
 

 COMPACT POWER INC MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS   
  1857 TECHNOLOGY DRIVE            44001 GARFIELD 
  TROY MI  48083             CLINTON TWP, MI 48038-1100  
 
 
(Avery 5160 Labels) 



 1

 
 
January 16, 2007 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Street Vacation Application (File Number SV 188) – 

A section of alley located North of Big Beaver between Louis and Troy, Section 22 
 
Background: 
 

• A public hearing is scheduled for the February 26, 2007 City Council meeting. 
 

• The subject alley is 18 feet wide and 244 feet in length. 
 
• The applicant owns the two parcels that abut the alley to the north and has applied to rezone 

the parcels to O-1 Low Rise Office (file number Z 724).  The applicant intends to acquire the 
City-owned remnant parcel located on the northeast corner of Louis and Big Beaver, and 
assemble these parcels into one larger parcel to create a developable site for an office 
development.  The remnant parcel sale can be completed following vacation of the alley. 
 

• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on January 9, 2007, and 
recommended approval of the proposed street vacation.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to approve the street vacation request. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 2

Policy Considerations: 
 
• The street vacation would not eliminate public street frontage for any buildings along Louis or 

Troy.   
 
• The item is consistent with City Council Goal II (Retain and attract investment while 

encouraging redevelopment) and Goal VI (Protect life and property). 
 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council may approve or deny the street vacation request.  
 
• No action is required until the public hearing. 

 
• City Management and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed street 

vacation, with the following conditions: 
 

1. Retention of all public and private utility easements. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\STREET VACATION\SV 188 Alley btwn Louis and Troy Sec 22\Announce CC Public Hearing 01 22 07.doc 
 
 
 
 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



TR
O

Y

FR
A

N
K

TO
N

HARTLAND

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

W BIG BEAVER

LO
U

IS

H
E

LE
N

A

E BIG BEAVER

STREET VACATION REQUEST
EXISTING 18 FT. WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY
PROPOSED SPA RENAISSANCE
N SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, BTWN TROY & LOUIS
SEC. 22  (SV-188)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

ALLEY TO BE VACATED



TR
O

Y

FR
A

N
K

TO
N

HARTLAND

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

W BIG BEAVER

LO
U

IS

H
E

LE
N

A

E BIG BEAVER

(C-F)

(R-1E)

(O-M)(OSC)

(O-1)

STREET VACATION REQUEST
EXISTING 18 FT. WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY
PROPOSED SPA RENAISSANCE
N SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, BTWN TROY & LOUIS
SEC. 22  (SV-188)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

ALLEY TO BE VACATED



LO
U

IS

TR
O

Y

E BIG BEAVER

3041
 

88-20-22-357-012

0
 

88-20-22-357-006

0
 

88-20-22-357-031

3150
 

88-20-22-355-025

0
 

88-20-22-356-031

0
 

88-20-22-356-014

3040
 

88-20-22-356-008

0
 

88-20-22-356-011

3080
 

88-20-22-356-020

3096
 

88-20-22-356-019

3091
 

88-20-22-356-028

3074
 

88-20-22-357-025

3117
 
88-20-22-357-017

3054
 

88-20-22-356-022

3049
 

88-20-22-356-030

3068
 

88-20-22-356-021

3061
 

88-20-22-356-029 0
 

88-20-22-357-026
3059

 
88-20-22-357-011

STREET VACATION REQUEST
EXISTING 18 FT. WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY
PROPOSED SPA RENAISSANCE
N SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, BTWN TROY & LOUIS
SEC. 22  (SV-188)

0 100 20050
Feet ³

ALLEY TO BE VACATED





 1

 
 
January 16, 2007 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Proposed Spa Renaissance, North side of Big 

Beaver, between Troy and Louis, Section 22 – R-1E to O-1 (Z-724) 
 
 
Background: 
 

• A public hearing is scheduled for the February 26, 2007 City Council meeting. 
 

• The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to rezone the parcel to O-1 
at the January 9, 2007 Regular meeting.   

 
• The Future Land Use Plan classifies the Rochester Road frontage in this area as Mid Rise 

Office.  The Mid Rise Office classification has a primary correlation with the O-M zoning 
district.  The application therefore is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan 
because the proposed intensity of O-1 is less than the Mid Rise Office classification.  The 
parcel has been planned as Mid Rise Office since 1972. 

 
• The applicant intends to purchase the remnant parcel on the northeast corner of Big Beaver 

and Louis and combine it with the subject parcel.  
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01c



 2

Policy Considerations: 
 

• Approval of the rezoning request would be consistent with City Council Goal II, Retain and attract 
investment while encouraging development, and Goal VI, Protect life and property. 

 
• Approval of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal II, Retain and 

attract investment while encouraging development, and Goal VI, Protect life and property. 
 

• The application complies with Section 24.40.13, which states that the O-1 District may be 
applied when the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the Master 
Land Use Planning and policies related thereto, and when development in accordance with O-1 
zoning would serve as a transitional element and would thus be more compatible with adjacent 
properties than would development under commercial or other office classifications. 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve the rezoning application. 
 

• City Council can deny the rezoning application. 
 

• City Management recommends approval of the rezoning application.   
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Statement from applicant. 
3. Letter of opposition. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 724 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-724 Spa Renaissance Sec 22\Announce CC Public Hearing 01 22 07.doc 
 
 
 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



TR
O

Y

FR
A

N
K

TO
N

HARTLAND

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

W BIG BEAVER

LO
U

IS

H
E

LE
N

A

E BIG BEAVER

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED SPA RENAISSANCE
FROM R-1E TO O-1
N SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, BTWN TROY & LOUIS
SEC. 22  (Z-724)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



TR
O

Y

FR
A

N
K

TO
N

HARTLAND

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

W BIG BEAVER

LO
U

IS

H
E

LE
N

A

E BIG BEAVER

(C-F)

(R-1E)

(O-M)(OSC)

(O-1)

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED SPA RENAISSANCE
FROM R-1E TO O-1
N SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, BTWN TROY & LOUIS
SEC. 22  (Z-724)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY









PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 5, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on December 5, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mary Kerwin Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan Mark J. Vleck 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright (arrived 7:35 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-203 
Moved by: Waller  
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised, by moving Item #8 further up the 
agenda to Item #5A.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Vleck, Wright (arrived 7:35 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES – November 14, 2006 and November 28, 2006 

 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-204 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the November 14, 2006 Regular meeting minutes and the 
November 28, 2006 Special/Study meeting minutes as presented.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 5, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-12-205 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Drake-Batts and Vleck are excused from attendance at 
this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-F) – William Beaumont Hospital Proposed Critical 
Care Tower, West side of Dequindre, South of South Blvd., Section 1, Zoned C-F 
(Community Facilities) District 
 
Mr. Savidant made a brief presentation on the item.  The applicant proposed a 
number of improvements with the Phase 1 Development Project inclusive of a 
critical care tower, emergency center renovation and addition, powerhouse 
expansion, helipad relocation and additional parking areas.  City Management 
recommended approval of the site plan as submitted. 
 
Jim Lemire of Harley Ellis Devereaux, 26913 Northwestern Highway, Southfield, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Lemire made a brief presentation and 
answered Planning Commission questions relating to the project. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-206 
Moved by:   Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
William Beaumont Hospital Phase 1 Development Project, located on west side of 
Dequindre, south of South Boulevard, in Section 1, within the C-F Zoning District, 
be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 5, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

5A. CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST (CR 001) – Proposed Troy Medical Office 
(formerly Z 719), West side of Livernois, North of Big Beaver, Section 21 – From R-1B 
(One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Savidant summarized the conditional rezoning project to date.  
 
Brandon M. Kaufman of Vision Quest Consulting, Inc., 4657 Wendrick Drive, West 
Bloomfield, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Kaufman presented the site 
plan and the landscape plan, a copy of which was distributed to the members prior 
to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  He indicated the landscape plan was 
developed using input from meetings with neighbors in the residential development 
to the north of the subject property.  Mr. Kaufman stated he addressed neighbors’ 
concerns including building height, building aesthetics and additional landscaping 
along the northern property line. 
 
General discussion followed.  Planning Commission suggestions included the 
following: 
• Consideration of a shared detention basin between the subject property and the 

detention basin to the north. 
• Consideration of a more “natural” design of the detention basin. 
• Additional landscaping near the entry drive. 
 
The Planning Commission generally agreed that the applicant was headed in the 
right direction with the conditional rezoning application. 
 
 

6. POTENTIAL FUTURE P.U.D. – Proposed Troy Plaza, Northeast corner of 
Corporate Drive and New King Street, Section 8, Zoned O-M (Office Mid-Rise) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a brief summary of the project. 
 
Michael J. Gordon of Moiseev/Gordon Associates, Inc., 818 West Eleven Mile 
Road, Royal Oak, was present.  He presented a brief summary of the conceptual 
plan for the project.  The mixed-use project is proposed to be 23 stories in height.  
The uses include a 174-key hotel, 112 condominium units, restaurant, retail, office 
and bank.  A 4-story parking structure is proposed.  
 
General discussion followed.  The Planning Commission indicated it generally 
supported the concept. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 5, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – Article 35.00.00  
Planned Unit Developments 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the project to date. 
 
Chair Strat invited the following audience members to sit at the table: 

• Rick Rattner, 380 North Woodward, Birmingham, Michigan 
• Sara Schillinger, LSL Planning, 306 S. Washington, Royal Oak, Michigan 
• Hunter Richardson, Richardson Development, Reston, Virginia 
• Ted Wilson, 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield, Michigan 

 
The following issues were discussed: 

• Reversion to underlying zoning if abandoned. 
• Expiration of Step 1 and Step 2 approval. 

 
 

9. SUB-COMMITTEE PROGRESS REPORTS AND DISCUSSION 
 
A. Tracking of Planning and Zoning Projects 
B. By-Laws 
C. Complete Update of Ordinance - Time Line and Milestones 
D. Sustainable Development Standards 
E. Design Standards and Examples 
F. Promotion of Ingenuity 
G. Educational - Speakers and Presentations to Planning Commission 
H. Site Plan Approval Requirements 
I. Comprehensive Plan Procedure Update 
J. Maple Road Study Update 
K. Big Beaver Corridor Study Update 
L. Reasons for Denial of Site Plan 
M. Improve Relationships with Other Commissions, City Departments and City 

Council 
N. Joint Meeting with City Council 
O. Other New Items 
 
Mr. Miller made a report on the Comprehensive Plan.  General discussion followed. 
 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
General discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 5, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:33 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\12-05-06 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 5, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on December 5, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mary Kerwin Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan Mark J. Vleck 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright (arrived 7:35 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-203 
Moved by: Waller  
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised, by moving Item #8 further up the 
agenda to Item #5A.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Vleck, Wright (arrived 7:35 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES – November 14, 2006 and November 28, 2006 

 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-204 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the November 14, 2006 Regular meeting minutes and the 
November 28, 2006 Special/Study meeting minutes as presented.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 5, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-12-205 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Drake-Batts and Vleck are excused from attendance at 
this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-F) – William Beaumont Hospital Proposed Critical 
Care Tower, West side of Dequindre, South of South Blvd., Section 1, Zoned C-F 
(Community Facilities) District 
 
Mr. Savidant made a brief presentation on the item.  The applicant proposed a 
number of improvements with the Phase 1 Development Project inclusive of a 
critical care tower, emergency center renovation and addition, powerhouse 
expansion, helipad relocation and additional parking areas.  City Management 
recommended approval of the site plan as submitted. 
 
Jim Lemire of Harley Ellis Devereaux, 26913 Northwestern Highway, Southfield, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Lemire made a brief presentation and 
answered Planning Commission questions relating to the project. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-206 
Moved by:   Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
William Beaumont Hospital Phase 1 Development Project, located on west side of 
Dequindre, south of South Boulevard, in Section 1, within the C-F Zoning District, 
be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 5, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

5A. CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST (CR 001) – Proposed Troy Medical Office 
(formerly Z 719), West side of Livernois, North of Big Beaver, Section 21 – From R-1B 
(One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Savidant summarized the conditional rezoning project to date.  
 
Brandon M. Kaufman of Vision Quest Consulting, Inc., 4657 Wendrick Drive, West 
Bloomfield, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Kaufman presented the site 
plan and the landscape plan, a copy of which was distributed to the members prior 
to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  He indicated the landscape plan was 
developed using input from meetings with neighbors in the residential development 
to the north of the subject property.  Mr. Kaufman stated he addressed neighbors’ 
concerns including building height, building aesthetics and additional landscaping 
along the northern property line. 
 
General discussion followed.  Planning Commission suggestions included the 
following: 
• Consideration of a shared detention basin between the subject property and the 

detention basin to the north. 
• Consideration of a more “natural” design of the detention basin. 
• Additional landscaping near the entry drive. 
 
The Planning Commission generally agreed that the applicant was headed in the 
right direction with the conditional rezoning application. 
 
 

6. POTENTIAL FUTURE P.U.D. – Proposed Troy Plaza, Northeast corner of 
Corporate Drive and New King Street, Section 8, Zoned O-M (Office Mid-Rise) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a brief summary of the project. 
 
Michael J. Gordon of Moiseev/Gordon Associates, Inc., 818 West Eleven Mile 
Road, Royal Oak, was present.  He presented a brief summary of the conceptual 
plan for the project.  The mixed-use project is proposed to be 23 stories in height.  
The uses include a 174-key hotel, 112 condominium units, restaurant, retail, office 
and bank.  A 4-story parking structure is proposed.  
 
General discussion followed.  The Planning Commission indicated it generally 
supported the concept. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 5, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – Article 35.00.00  
Planned Unit Developments 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the project to date. 
 
Chair Strat invited the following audience members to sit at the table: 

• Rick Rattner, 380 North Woodward, Birmingham, Michigan 
• Sara Schillinger, LSL Planning, 306 S. Washington, Royal Oak, Michigan 
• Hunter Richardson, Richardson Development, Reston, Virginia 
• Ted Wilson, 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield, Michigan 

 
The following issues were discussed: 

• Reversion to underlying zoning if abandoned. 
• Expiration of Step 1 and Step 2 approval. 

 
 

9. SUB-COMMITTEE PROGRESS REPORTS AND DISCUSSION 
 
A. Tracking of Planning and Zoning Projects 
B. By-Laws 
C. Complete Update of Ordinance - Time Line and Milestones 
D. Sustainable Development Standards 
E. Design Standards and Examples 
F. Promotion of Ingenuity 
G. Educational - Speakers and Presentations to Planning Commission 
H. Site Plan Approval Requirements 
I. Comprehensive Plan Procedure Update 
J. Maple Road Study Update 
K. Big Beaver Corridor Study Update 
L. Reasons for Denial of Site Plan 
M. Improve Relationships with Other Commissions, City Departments and City 

Council 
N. Joint Meeting with City Council 
O. Other New Items 
 
Mr. Miller made a report on the Comprehensive Plan.  General discussion followed. 
 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
General discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 5, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:33 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\12-05-06 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
DECEMBER 6, 2006 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, December 6, 2006, at the lower level Conference Room at City Hall.  
Chairman Stewart called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Present:  C Buchanan, member K. Clark, alternate 
   A. Done, member  C. Geier, member  
   P. Hammond, member G. Hyun, student  
   P. Manetta, member S. Murphy, alternate 
   J. Stewart, member  C. Weidman, student 
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
Absent: D. Pietron, member EA 
   M. Freliga, member EA     
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF NOVEMBER 1, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of November 1, 2006 be approved.  
Supported by Geier; all voted in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
At this time, new Committee members Sean Murphy and Kelly Clark were welcomed to 
the meeting.  Sean proceeded with his scheduled presentation on his employer, 
Disability Made Easy LLC.  This Company specializes in barrier free construction and 
alterations to residential buildings.  The Company is a licensed contractor by the State 
of Michigan and can perform simple work such as replacing grab rails to more complex 
projects, including the design and installation of accessible kitchens, bathrooms, and 
barrier free entrance ramps.  Emphasis  is given to each client’s needs and the project 
is assessed to accommodate the individual. 
 
Kelly is currently a Program Director for Angel’s Place.  She has been an advocate for 
the learning and developmentally disabled population for a number of years. 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Buchanan reported that Community Affairs would include the Personal 
Emergency Preparedness Plan for Persons with Disabilities in the spring edition 
of Troy Today if it is ready at time of printing.  Werpetinski and Hyun volunteered 
to assist Buchanan in research and development of this plan. 

B. Werpetinski previously reported that she requested to the City Clerk, Tonni 
Bartholomew that during elections precinct workers not use handicap parking so 
that these spaces are left available for persons with disabilities coming to vote.  
She has since forwarded this request to Michigan Protection and Advocacy 
Service, Inc. to become a recommendation statewide. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
DECEMBER 6, 2006 

 2

 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
It was suggested that the Committee review the current Mission Statement prior to final 
print of the ACPD brochures; is it too lengthy and content unclear?  Discussion followed 
that showed most members favor the current Mission Statement.  Buchanan made a 
motion to not amend or change the current ACPD Mission Statement, supported by 
Hammond.  9 yes votes, 1 no vote – motion carried. 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 

A. Hyun surveyed local pharmacies to find out if they offer delivery for 
prescription drugs.  She reported that Kashat Pharmacy 36949 Dequindre, 
Kroger Pharmacy, 31 E. Long Lake, and Kroger Pharmacy at SE corner of E. 
Long Lake and Dequindre do offer prescription drug deliveries.  Clark 
reported that Troy Pharmacy, 2649 Crooks, also offers deliveries.  Weidman 
reported that she polled local grocery stores to see if they offer grocery 
delivery.  She found none that offer this service. 

B. Werpetinski reported that City Council is awaiting the State’s decision 
regarding ADA accessibility compliance for group child care homes. 

     
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None to report. 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 

A. Hammond reported that the floor repairs have been completed for the house 
bound trailer park resident. 

B. Werpetinski verified with Cindy Stewart that a commendation letter from the 
ACPD could be sent to individuals or businesses that are extraordinary 
advocates for persons with disabilities. 

C. Hammond and Werpetinski assisted at the special needs adults crafting event 
held on 11/30/06.  Werpetinski was disappointed with the materials and planning.  
She offered her assistance for future crafting events. 

D. Stewart reported Friday, December 8th is the Friday Frolic Holiday Dance.  
Members who want to volunteer with this event are welcome. 

 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Buchanan made a motion to adjourn at 8:57 p.m.  Supported by Hammond.  All voted in 
favor. 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                       Jeff Stewart, Chairperson 
 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
DECEMBER 6, 2006 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, December 6, 2006, at the lower level Conference Room at City Hall.  
Chairman Stewart called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Present:  C Buchanan, member K. Clark, alternate 
   A. Done, member  C. Geier, member  
   P. Hammond, member G. Hyun, student  
   P. Manetta, member S. Murphy, alternate 
   J. Stewart, member  C. Weidman, student 
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
Absent: D. Pietron, member EA 
   M. Freliga, member EA     
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF NOVEMBER 1, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of November 1, 2006 be approved.  
Supported by Geier; all voted in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
At this time, new Committee members Sean Murphy and Kelly Clark were welcomed to 
the meeting.  Sean proceeded with his scheduled presentation on his employer, 
Disability Made Easy LLC.  This Company specializes in barrier free construction and 
alterations to residential buildings.  The Company is a licensed contractor by the State 
of Michigan and can perform simple work such as replacing grab rails to more complex 
projects, including the design and installation of accessible kitchens, bathrooms, and 
barrier free entrance ramps.  Emphasis  is given to each client’s needs and the project 
is assessed to accommodate the individual. 
 
Kelly is currently a Program Director for Angel’s Place.  She has been an advocate for 
the learning and developmentally disabled population for a number of years. 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Buchanan reported that Community Affairs would include the Personal 
Emergency Preparedness Plan for Persons with Disabilities in the spring edition 
of Troy Today if it is ready at time of printing.  Werpetinski and Hyun volunteered 
to assist Buchanan in research and development of this plan. 

B. Werpetinski previously reported that she requested to the City Clerk, Tonni 
Bartholomew that during elections precinct workers not use handicap parking so 
that these spaces are left available for persons with disabilities coming to vote.  
She has since forwarded this request to Michigan Protection and Advocacy 
Service, Inc. to become a recommendation statewide. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
DECEMBER 6, 2006 

 2

 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
It was suggested that the Committee review the current Mission Statement prior to final 
print of the ACPD brochures; is it too lengthy and content unclear?  Discussion followed 
that showed most members favor the current Mission Statement.  Buchanan made a 
motion to not amend or change the current ACPD Mission Statement, supported by 
Hammond.  9 yes votes, 1 no vote – motion carried. 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 

A. Hyun surveyed local pharmacies to find out if they offer delivery for 
prescription drugs.  She reported that Kashat Pharmacy 36949 Dequindre, 
Kroger Pharmacy, 31 E. Long Lake, and Kroger Pharmacy at SE corner of E. 
Long Lake and Dequindre do offer prescription drug deliveries.  Clark 
reported that Troy Pharmacy, 2649 Crooks, also offers deliveries.  Weidman 
reported that she polled local grocery stores to see if they offer grocery 
delivery.  She found none that offer this service. 

B. Werpetinski reported that City Council is awaiting the State’s decision 
regarding ADA accessibility compliance for group child care homes. 

     
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None to report. 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 

A. Hammond reported that the floor repairs have been completed for the house 
bound trailer park resident. 

B. Werpetinski verified with Cindy Stewart that a commendation letter from the 
ACPD could be sent to individuals or businesses that are extraordinary 
advocates for persons with disabilities. 

C. Hammond and Werpetinski assisted at the special needs adults crafting event 
held on 11/30/06.  Werpetinski was disappointed with the materials and planning.  
She offered her assistance for future crafting events. 

D. Stewart reported Friday, December 8th is the Friday Frolic Holiday Dance.  
Members who want to volunteer with this event are welcome. 

 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Buchanan made a motion to adjourn at 8:57 p.m.  Supported by Hammond.  All voted in 
favor. 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                       Jeff Stewart, Chairperson 
 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Dec. 7, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Dec. 7 
2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   Merrill Dixon, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: David Ogg, excused, Frank Shier, excused    
   
Visitors:  Mila Bednarz, Dr. Thomas Biggs 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-12-001 
Moved by Pauline Noce  
Seconded by Merrill Dixon  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Nov. 2, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 6       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Dr. Biggs gave a presentation on the aging eye. 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that the bocce courts are done and the 
shuffleboard courts just need to be stained and have the numbers painted on them.  Benches 
will also be installed.  A ribbon cutting ceremony will be held in the spring. 
 
Street Signs:  Carla reported that Superintendent of Streets Tom Rosewarne and Traffic 
Engineer John Abraham will attend the January meeting to discuss street signs.  Mr. Abraham 
was not available to attend today’s meeting. 
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that the contract with Emerald 
Food Service will not be renewed.  They have been granted permission to end their contract 
effective February 12.  It is expected that a list of caterers that may be used will be developed 
and that non-profit groups will be allowed to bring their own food.   
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Dec. 7, 2006 

2 

Lunch Visits:  JoAnn Thompson reported that some committee members ate the Troy lunch 
on November 16 and the food was good.  After the first of the year, the committee will make up 
a list of other centers to visit for lunch. 
 
Medicare Part D:  JoAnn Thompson reported that seniors should be sure to check their plans 
during the open enrollment period as there are many changes.  
 
New Business 
 
Kaleidoscope:  JoAnn Thompson asked if it would be beneficial for the committee to have a 
table at the Kaleidoscope in January.  Carla reported that the Parks and Recreation 
Department does have a booth at the event with literature about the senior program.  She will 
get more details about the event and the committee will discuss it further at their January 
meeting.   
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that they reviewed the master plan at their November 
meeting.  He distributed copies of the 2005 Parks and Recreation survey.  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that Medi-Go has a new van and they are very busy.  They are 
still talking about expanding to offer weekend service. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that 1360 flu shots were given at the clinic on Nov. 2 with a 
wait of no more than 20 minutes.  Fifteen senior volunteers helped with this program.  Ninety 
seniors attended the Veterans Benefits program on Nov. 9.  Twenty-eight seniors attended the 
two-day AARP Defensive Driving course at the Community Center that concluded yesterday.  
The home repair program, SHaRP, is going great.  A steering committee has been formed and 
the Troy Community Foundation is involved.  Seven people are signed up for the supper club, 
and a meeting will be scheduled for January. 
 
OLHSA:  No report.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported they had a speaker from 
SMART.  Transportation, health and information are some areas they will concentrate on in 
2007.  
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there were no suggestions this month. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:50 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Vice 
Chair Schultz at 7:45 p.m. on December 12, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mary Kerwin Lynn Drake-Batts 
Lawrence Littman Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:45 p.m.) Wayne Wright 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-207 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat and Wright are excused from 
attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-208 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as presented.   
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
Mr. Waller asked the status of his request at the November 28th Special/Study meeting 
with respect to cellular towers as relates to fall zones, tower locations at public school 
sites and the zoning classification of Fire Station No. 6.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied there is nothing finalized into text to date.   
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – 

Article 35.00.00  Planned Unit Developments 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
Planned Unit Developments.  It is the recommendation of City Management to 
postpone the public hearing to the January 9, 2007 Regular meeting. 
 
Mr. Littman said it is his opinion that the proposed text revisions should be 
discussed at a study meeting before a vote is taken.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Vice Chair Schultz announced that the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12 - 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item to the February Regular meeting to give us a 
chance to review the changes at a study meeting before voting on it.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Kerwin said she would be comfortable entertaining the text revisions at the 
January meeting, and noted concern in delaying the item for a month. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Vleck said discussing the text revisions at either meeting would be okay with him.  
He noted the item could be postponed to February should members not be ready to 
vote at the January meeting.   
 
Mr. Savidant said City Management would highlight the changes to make them easily 
discernable and would forward the text revisions to the members prior to the Friday 
before the January Regular meeting.   
 
The following substitute motion was placed on the floor.  
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-209 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to the 
January 9, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SU 337) – Existing Clark Station, Southwest corner of 
Rochester Road and South Boulevard, Section 3 – Zoned H-S (Highway Service) 
District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the amended Preliminary Site Plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Brian Sharrak of 2831 Chestnut Run, Bloomfield Hills, was present.  
Mr. Sharrak indicated the revised plan incorporates a better traffic flow and 
additional landscaping, and the site is now conforming.   
 
Mr. Vleck commended the petitioner on the revised design.   
 
Vice Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-12-210 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 23.30.02 of 
the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the existing Clark Station, located at the 
southwest corner of Rochester Road and South Blvd., located in Section 3, within 
the H-S zoning district, is hereby granted. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 934) – Proposed Restaurant Depot Wholesale Distributor, 
Southwest corner of Maple and Allen, Section 35, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.  Mr. Savidant noted that sealed architectural 
drawings were distributed to the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s 
meeting. 
 
The petitioner, Doug Brinker of Atwell-Hicks, 50182 Schoenherr Road, Shelby 
Township, was present.   
 
Mr. Littman, having had the opportunity to review the plan at the Board of Zoning 
Appeals level, commended the petitioner for being cooperative and submitting a 
good plan.   
 
Vice Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-211 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Restaurant Depot Wholesale Distributor, located on the southwest corner of Maple 
and Allen, Section 35, within the M-1 Zoning District, be granted. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 935) – Proposed Rochester Professional Building, 

Northwest corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, Section 3 – Zoned O-1 (Low Rise 
Office) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reported a written request has been received from the petitioner to 
postpone the item to the January 9, 2007 Regular meeting to allow consideration of 
the item by a full board. 
 
Vice Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-212 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item to our meeting of the 9th of January 2007.  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
Members wished Mr. Waller all the best and expressed their appreciation for his 13 
years on the board.   
 
Mr. Waller thanked the members for their support and encouragement as he served 
the Planning Commission.   
 
Holiday wishes were expressed by all. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Vice Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\12-12-06 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Vice 
Chair Schultz at 7:45 p.m. on December 12, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mary Kerwin Lynn Drake-Batts 
Lawrence Littman Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:45 p.m.) Wayne Wright 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-207 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat and Wright are excused from 
attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-208 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as presented.   
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
Mr. Waller asked the status of his request at the November 28th Special/Study meeting 
with respect to cellular towers as relates to fall zones, tower locations at public school 
sites and the zoning classification of Fire Station No. 6.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied there is nothing finalized into text to date.   
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – 

Article 35.00.00  Planned Unit Developments 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
Planned Unit Developments.  It is the recommendation of City Management to 
postpone the public hearing to the January 9, 2007 Regular meeting. 
 
Mr. Littman said it is his opinion that the proposed text revisions should be 
discussed at a study meeting before a vote is taken.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Vice Chair Schultz announced that the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12 - 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item to the February Regular meeting to give us a 
chance to review the changes at a study meeting before voting on it.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Kerwin said she would be comfortable entertaining the text revisions at the 
January meeting, and noted concern in delaying the item for a month. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Vleck said discussing the text revisions at either meeting would be okay with him.  
He noted the item could be postponed to February should members not be ready to 
vote at the January meeting.   
 
Mr. Savidant said City Management would highlight the changes to make them easily 
discernable and would forward the text revisions to the members prior to the Friday 
before the January Regular meeting.   
 
The following substitute motion was placed on the floor.  
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-209 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to the 
January 9, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SU 337) – Existing Clark Station, Southwest corner of 
Rochester Road and South Boulevard, Section 3 – Zoned H-S (Highway Service) 
District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the amended Preliminary Site Plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Brian Sharrak of 2831 Chestnut Run, Bloomfield Hills, was present.  
Mr. Sharrak indicated the revised plan incorporates a better traffic flow and 
additional landscaping, and the site is now conforming.   
 
Mr. Vleck commended the petitioner on the revised design.   
 
Vice Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-12-210 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 23.30.02 of 
the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the existing Clark Station, located at the 
southwest corner of Rochester Road and South Blvd., located in Section 3, within 
the H-S zoning district, is hereby granted. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 934) – Proposed Restaurant Depot Wholesale Distributor, 
Southwest corner of Maple and Allen, Section 35, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.  Mr. Savidant noted that sealed architectural 
drawings were distributed to the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s 
meeting. 
 
The petitioner, Doug Brinker of Atwell-Hicks, 50182 Schoenherr Road, Shelby 
Township, was present.   
 
Mr. Littman, having had the opportunity to review the plan at the Board of Zoning 
Appeals level, commended the petitioner for being cooperative and submitting a 
good plan.   
 
Vice Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-211 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Restaurant Depot Wholesale Distributor, located on the southwest corner of Maple 
and Allen, Section 35, within the M-1 Zoning District, be granted. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 935) – Proposed Rochester Professional Building, 

Northwest corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, Section 3 – Zoned O-1 (Low Rise 
Office) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reported a written request has been received from the petitioner to 
postpone the item to the January 9, 2007 Regular meeting to allow consideration of 
the item by a full board. 
 
Vice Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-12-212 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item to our meeting of the 9th of January 2007.  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
Members wished Mr. Waller all the best and expressed their appreciation for his 13 
years on the board.   
 
Mr. Waller thanked the members for their support and encouragement as he served 
the Planning Commission.   
 
Holiday wishes were expressed by all. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Vice Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\12-12-06 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 
 
 
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01h







BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 19, 2006 

The Chairman, Michael Hutson, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M on Tuesday, December 19, 2006 at 7:30 P.M. in Council Chambers of 
the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ABSENT:  Marcia Gies 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to excuse Ms. Gies from tonight’s meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MS. GIES CARRIED  
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF NOVEMBER 21, 2006 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of November 21, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney  
Abstain: 1 - Fejes  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 AND ITEM #4 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve Item #3 and Item #4 are hereby approved in accordance with the 
suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  CONGREGATION SHIR-TIKVAH, 3900 
NORTHFIELD PARKWAY, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required 
on the east side of off-street parking. 
 
MOVED, to grant Congregation Shir-Tikvah, 3900 Northfield Parkway a three (3) year 
renewal of relief to maintain landscaping in lieu of the 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall 
required along the east side of their off-street parking area where it abuts residential 
zoned property. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  THE CHURCH OF THE JESUS CHRIST OF 
LATTER DAY SAINTS, 2784 E. SQUARE LAKE, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry 
wall required along the east and west sides of off-street parking. 
 
MOVED, to grant Church of Jesus Christ Latter Day Saints, 2784 E. Square Lake, a 
three (3) year renewal for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the east 
and west sides of off-street parking. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  KEN BURKHART, 122 MINNESOTA, for relief of 
the Ordinance to expand the parking lot at an existing industrial building that will result 
in the parking lot being within 15’ of the front property line, where Section 30.20.09 of 
the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ front yard setback and Paragraph L of Section 
31.30.00 requires that this yard remain free of parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to expand 
the parking lot at an existing industrial building.  The petitioner is proposing the 
construction of three parking spaces in the front of an existing industrial building that will 
result in the parking lot being within 15’ of the front property line.  Section 30.20.09 of 
the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ front yard setback and Paragraph L of Section 
31.30.00 requires that this yard remain free of parking spaces. 
 
The Chairman asked if both items could be presented at the same time and Mr. Stimac 
stated that they are identical and could be heard together, although a separate vote 
would be required for each item. 
 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Mark Bortolotti representing Mr. Burkhart was present.  Mr. Bortolotti stated that the 
problem is that they don’t have any handicapped parking and because of the economy it 
would make it much easier to lease and/or sell this building with the extra parking.  Mr. 
Bortolotti went on to say that the buildings next door and across the street all use the 
front setback for parking.  Mr. Bortolotti has gone through the City records and there 
have been similar requests for parking in the front setback, although they have all been 
denied.  People still park vehicles in these front setbacks and nothing has been done 
about it. 
 
These buildings were constructed around 1968 and need a lot of work to make them 
more attractive to potential customers.  The real estate market is in a definite slump 
right now and if they can’t provide extra parking, potential customers may go elsewhere. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if these buildings were vacant and Mr. Bortolotti confirmed that they 
were.  Mr. Bortolotti said that Mr. Burkhart is retiring and just wants to sell the property.  
A developer looked at the property and was not interested because there was not 
enough parking. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the building to the south had received a variance.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that he had researched the records but they are very ambiguous.  When the 
buildings were constructed parking was allowed in the front setback.  These buildings 
were built at the 50’ setback and have come before the Board several times asking for a 
variance for parking in the front setback but each time they were denied. 
 
Mr. Wright said that the property on Minnesota has parking 15’ from the street, which is 
illegal, as they do not have variances granting this parking. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs questioned the 20’ distance between the buildings.  Mr. Stimac explained 
that the Ordinance had a minimum side yard setback of 10’ resulting in a distance 
between buildings of 20’ and these buildings do comply.  However, the current minimum 
width of a two-way driveway is 22’.   
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he agrees with the petitioner that this property needs help. 
 
Mr. Courtney said he would be more inclined to grant a variance if they had a potential 
buyer, but right now no one is occupying the building and there is no hardship. 
 
Mr. Hutson agreed and stated in his opinion there is no practical difficulty.   
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartoletti stated that the people across the street and to the south are already 
parking in the front setback and they would like to be able to do the same. 
 
Mr. Hutson said there is nothing crucial at this time.  These buildings are empty and 
there is no hardship.  Mr. Hutson suggested that the petitioner may want to withdraw 
these requests until he has a definite buyer for the property. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he felt the lack of parking would be a hardship for anyone 
interested in these properties. 
 
Mr. Wright agreed especially since the City is not enforcing the parking. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that if the petitioner had a tenant he would agree with Mr. Maxwell, 
however, no one is in the building and there is not a current problem, just a potential 
problem.   
 
Mr. Bortoletti stated that the real estate market is very bad right now and basically it is 
small companies that are interested in this type of property and they like to move very 
quickly. 
 
Mr. Bortoletti stated that he would like to withdraw his request for a variance on 122 
Minnesota and 224 Minnesota. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to accept the petitioner’s request to withdraw his request to expand the 
existing parking lot at 122 Minnesota that will result in the parking lot being within 15’ of 
the front property line. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  KEN BURKHART, 224 MINNESOTA, for relief of 
the Ordinance to expand the parking lot at an existing industrial building that will result 
in the parking lot being within 15’ of the front property line, where Section 30.20.09 of 
the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ front yard setback and Paragraph L of Section 
31.30.00 requires that this yard remain free of parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to expand 
the parking lot at an existing industrial building.  The petitioner is proposing the 
construction of three parking spaces in the front of an existing industrial building that will 
result in the parking lot being within 15’ of the front property line.  Section 30.20.09 of  

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ front yard setback and Paragraph L of Section 
31.30.00 requires that this yard remain free of parking spaces. 
 
This request was heard with Item #5 as the petitioner and request are the same on both 
properties. 
 
Mr. Bortoletti stated that he would like to withdraw his request for a variance on 122 
Minnesota and 224 Minnesota. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to accept the petitioner’s request to withdraw his request to expand the 
existing parking lot at 224 Minnesota that will result in the parking lot being within 15’ of 
the front property line. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. MICHAEL TAORMINO, 1874 
WYNGATE, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a deck enclosure that will result in a 
35’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ rear yard setback for 
buildings in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a room over a deck that will result in a proposed 35’ rear yard setback.  Section 
30.10.02 requires a 45’ rear yard setback for buildings in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the property behind this lot was part of Firefighters Park.  Mr. 
Stimac explained that the property directly behind this parcel was platted as part of the 
subdivision. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the size of the structure was and Mr. Stimac said that it is 14’ 
x 13”. 
 
Mr. Courtney then asked if the deck was encroaching into the setback.  Mr. Stimac 
explained that an uncovered deck is allowed a 15’ encroachment into the required rear 
yard. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Taormino were present.  Mr. Taormino said that their property backs up to 
the wetland and the bugs are really intolerable.  Adjacent to the wetlands is a retention 
pond and there are a number of geese around this pond.  They have two children and a 
dog, and it is very difficult to spend anytime outside in the summer. 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if this room could be used year round.  Mrs. Taormino said that it 
would be a three-season room.  It would not be heated. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there was any other location they could put this room.  Mr. 
Taormino said that they had tried to put it in other locations, but because of the way the 
roof is it would not fit in anywhere else. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how large this home was.  Mr. Taormino said it is approximately 3600 
square feet.   
 
Mr. Kovacs then asked how long they had owned the property and Mr. Taormino said 
that have been in the house since May.  This was a spec home.  Mr. Kovacs said that 
he understands their problem with the bugs as he had lived next to a retention pond, but 
believes that there may be other options available. This is a very large house and there 
is a lot of room on the side of the house. 
 
Mr. Taormino said if they put the room on the side of the house they would not have any 
access from the house.  You would have to go outside in order to go back into the 
three-season room. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion granting this request would be similar to opening 
“Pandora’s Box”.  There is no problem with the land.  Mr. Taormino said that they really 
can’t enjoy their house as much as they would like to because of this bug problem. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that he is very sympathetic with these problems.  This is a new 
subdivision and certain setbacks are put in place for everyone in the subdivision.  If this 
variance is granted, the Board would have more neighbors asking for the same type of 
variance.  This Board is charged with enforcing the Ordinance and there is no hardship 
with the land. 
 
Mr. Taormino said that he did not think granting this variance would cause a problem as 
there are only a few homes that back up to this wetland.  Mr. Hutson said that the bugs 
are the same for all the homes. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that in his opinion this was a very large variance request.  He feels 
that he would be willing to give them some type of variance but not 10’ because of the 
fact that this lot is somewhat irregular. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked the petitioners if they felt they would like to explore other options. 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that if the variance was denied tonight and they came back with a 
large change, the Board could act on the new variance request. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Mr. & Mrs. Michael Taormino, 1874 Wyngate, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct a deck enclosure that will result in a 35’ rear yard setback 
where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ rear yard setback for buildings in the R-1B 
Zoning District. 
 
Motion dies to a lack of support. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Taormino said that they would like to postpone their request for a variance. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Mr. and Mrs. Michael Taormino, 1874 Wyngate, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a deck enclosure that will result in a 35’ rear yard 
setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ rear yard setback for building in the R-
1B Zoning District for sixty (60) days until the meeting of February 20, 2007. 
 

• To allow the petitioners the opportunity to explore other possibilities that may 
reduce the size of this variance request. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL FEBRUARY 20, 2007 CARRIED 
 
Mr. Wright stated that in his opinion the hardship could be considered the fact that they 
back up to the wetland and there are a large number of bugs.  The hardship would not 
be with their property, but the property adjacent to them. 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TROY CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE, 6840 
CROOKS, for relief of side yard building setback, side yard parking lot setback, and 
screening requirements of Section 10.30.04 of the Ordinance to construct a multi 
purpose/classroom addition to the existing Church.   
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Paragraph B of Section 
10.30.04, which requires a side yard setback of 50’ for a Church in the R-1B Zoning 
District.  Paragraph G of the same Section further requires that side setback to be 
increased to 80’ when the addition includes active indoor recreation facilities.  The site 
plan submitted indicates that the building will be only 48.9’ from the north property line. 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Petitioner is also requesting relief of Paragraph E of Section 10.30.04 requires that 
there be no parking in these required side yards.  The site plans submitted indicated 
new parking or driveways within 16’ of the north property line and 47’ of the south 
property line.  Paragraph F of this Section also requires a 4’-6” high screening wall or 
landscaped berm be installed between parking areas and adjacent residential land.  No 
screening elements are provided between the parking area and the adjacent residential 
land to the north or south.       
 
David LeClair of Livingston Engineering, and Pastor Dennis Wegener of the Troy 
Church of the Nazarene were present.   
 
Mr. LeClair explained that the Church is currently interested in expanding its current 
facility and adding a multi-purpose classroom addition.  This building was built in the  
70’s and they would like to update and expand it in order to meet their needs.  Mr. 
LeClair said that there are three (3) hardships:  1.  There are existing natural features 
that include a very mature landscape buffer on the south side of the building and there 
is a heavily wooded area at the back of the building and there is quite a bit of 
landscaping on the north side of the building; 2. The Church has been in existence for a 
number of years and just want to expand on the existing footprint of the building in an 
east and west direction; 3. The site is only 200’ wide and the requirements of the 
Ordinance create a hardship because of the narrowness of the lot. 
 
Mr. LeClair addressed each hardship in order beginning with the request for a setback 
variance for the activity center.  The property to the north is occupied by Sunrise 
Assisted Living, the Ordinance requires an 80’ setback to residential property, and 
although it is zoned Residential, it is not your typical type of residence.   They are 
planning to expand the building out from the existing structure and therefore would be 
the same as it is today.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what the intended use of the expansion was going to be.  Mr. LeClair 
said it was going to be used as an activity center, classrooms and a fellowship hall. 
 
Pastor Wegener stated that the proposed use of the expansion is two-fold.  There will 
be several classrooms and the rest of the area will be used on Sundays for “kids 
worship” and also as a fellowship hall.  Mr. Maxwell asked what they planned to put in 
the space.  Pastor Wegener stated that they would like to put up a few basketball 
hoops, but it would not be full size gym, and also plan to use it for Church dinners.  The 
primary use will be for the children.  The second floor will have a loft that will be 
designated as an area for teens to gather. 
 
Pastor Wegener said that they have a very good relationship with Sunrise Assisted 
Living and in fact have a path made of brick pavers between the two properties.  Pastor 
Wegener submitted a letter from Sunrise Assisted Living indicating approval of this 
request.  He goes there every morning and visits the people that live there.  They also  

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
have access to the parking and when needed they do use the extra parking on this 
property. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what the primary use of the space would be.  Pastor Wegener said 
that it would be used 75% for education.  On Sundays it will be used for education and 
teaching. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked why the wanted to put the addition on the front of the building rather 
than the back.  Pastor Wegener stated that the building was constructed in the 60’s and 
they are trying to make the front of the building look better than it does. The building 
would look more like a Church in the front and they feel this will make it more pleasant 
to the eye and will fit in better with Sunrise Assisted Living.  The building is unattractive 
and the sanctuary is in the back and access to the Church is easier. 
 
Mr. LeClair stated that even if the proposed construction took place at the back of the 
building a variance would still be required.   
 
Mr. LeClair said that regarding parking within the 50’ setback.  If you look at the site the 
existing parking lot is 16’ from the setback and we are asking to put in a driveway that 
would continue that 16’ from the back parking lot to the front parking lot.  This would 
enable an emergency vehicle to go around the entire building. 
 
Regarding the 4’ 6” high screen wall required there is natural landscaping. South of this 
property is a residential area but it is screened by a very mature tree line and they 
would have to destroy those trees in order to put up a screening wall.  They would like 
to leave existing trees in place. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the variance for the berm would be permanent or renewable.  Mr. 
Stimac stated that it would depend on how the Board acted on the request.  The 
petitioner’s request is to eliminate the screen wall and if the Board agreed, that would 
be a permanent variance.  If the request was to maintain a berm in lieu of a screen wall, 
that would be a renewable item.   
 
Mr. Wright stated that he did not see any problem with the variance requested for the 
south side results in a variance of a couple of inches.  Mr. Wright does not have a 
problem with granting a variance on the north side of the building for the parking 
variance.  He was wondering if the Board could grant a three (3) year variance for the 
berm. 
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Troy Church of the Nazarene, 6840 Crooks, for relief of the side yard-
building setback, side yard parking lot setback, required by Section 10.30.04 of the 
Ordinance to construct a multi purpose/classroom addition to the existing Church.   
 

• Variance request on the south side is minimal. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to the property on the north side of 

this site. 
• Parking variance is in line with approved parking area. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE REQUESTS CARRIED 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Troy Church of the Nazarene, 6840 Crooks, relief of  the screening 
requirements of Section 10.30.04 of the Ordinance to construct a multi 
purpose/classroom to the existing Church. 
 

• Natural vegetation would have to be destroyed if the screen wall is required. 
• Too many trees that already provide screening would be lost. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Wright 
Nays:  2 – Kovacs, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO GRANT PERMANENT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the reason he voted no, was because he would have liked it to be 
renewable after a year.  He was concerned about any type of future use. 
 
Mr. Hutson informed the Board that this was his last meeting as he has been appointed 
to the Planning Commission.   He thanked everyone for all of their help and wished all a 
Happy Holiday. 
 
Mr. Wright welcomed Mr. Hutson to the Planning Commission and stated that he has 
enjoyed working with the Board this year and wished all a Happy Holiday. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:38 P.M. 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     DECEMBER 19, 2006 

 
 
 
              
       Michael Hutson, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      DECEMBER 19, 2006 

The Chairman, Michael Hutson, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M on Tuesday, December 19, 2006 at 7:30 P.M. in Council Chambers of 
the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ABSENT:  Marcia Gies 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to excuse Ms. Gies from tonight’s meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MS. GIES CARRIED  
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF NOVEMBER 21, 2006 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of November 21, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney  
Abstain: 1 - Fejes  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 AND ITEM #4 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve Item #3 and Item #4 are hereby approved in accordance with the 
suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  CONGREGATION SHIR-TIKVAH, 3900 
NORTHFIELD PARKWAY, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required 
on the east side of off-street parking. 
 
MOVED, to grant Congregation Shir-Tikvah, 3900 Northfield Parkway a three (3) year 
renewal of relief to maintain landscaping in lieu of the 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall 
required along the east side of their off-street parking area where it abuts residential 
zoned property. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  THE CHURCH OF THE JESUS CHRIST OF 
LATTER DAY SAINTS, 2784 E. SQUARE LAKE, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry 
wall required along the east and west sides of off-street parking. 
 
MOVED, to grant Church of Jesus Christ Latter Day Saints, 2784 E. Square Lake, a 
three (3) year renewal for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the east 
and west sides of off-street parking. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  KEN BURKHART, 122 MINNESOTA, for relief of 
the Ordinance to expand the parking lot at an existing industrial building that will result 
in the parking lot being within 15’ of the front property line, where Section 30.20.09 of 
the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ front yard setback and Paragraph L of Section 
31.30.00 requires that this yard remain free of parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to expand 
the parking lot at an existing industrial building.  The petitioner is proposing the 
construction of three parking spaces in the front of an existing industrial building that will 
result in the parking lot being within 15’ of the front property line.  Section 30.20.09 of 
the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ front yard setback and Paragraph L of Section 
31.30.00 requires that this yard remain free of parking spaces. 
 
The Chairman asked if both items could be presented at the same time and Mr. Stimac 
stated that they are identical and could be heard together, although a separate vote 
would be required for each item. 
 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Mark Bortolotti representing Mr. Burkhart was present.  Mr. Bortolotti stated that the 
problem is that they don’t have any handicapped parking and because of the economy it 
would make it much easier to lease and/or sell this building with the extra parking.  Mr. 
Bortolotti went on to say that the buildings next door and across the street all use the 
front setback for parking.  Mr. Bortolotti has gone through the City records and there 
have been similar requests for parking in the front setback, although they have all been 
denied.  People still park vehicles in these front setbacks and nothing has been done 
about it. 
 
These buildings were constructed around 1968 and need a lot of work to make them 
more attractive to potential customers.  The real estate market is in a definite slump 
right now and if they can’t provide extra parking, potential customers may go elsewhere. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if these buildings were vacant and Mr. Bortolotti confirmed that they 
were.  Mr. Bortolotti said that Mr. Burkhart is retiring and just wants to sell the property.  
A developer looked at the property and was not interested because there was not 
enough parking. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the building to the south had received a variance.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that he had researched the records but they are very ambiguous.  When the 
buildings were constructed parking was allowed in the front setback.  These buildings 
were built at the 50’ setback and have come before the Board several times asking for a 
variance for parking in the front setback but each time they were denied. 
 
Mr. Wright said that the property on Minnesota has parking 15’ from the street, which is 
illegal, as they do not have variances granting this parking. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs questioned the 20’ distance between the buildings.  Mr. Stimac explained 
that the Ordinance had a minimum side yard setback of 10’ resulting in a distance 
between buildings of 20’ and these buildings do comply.  However, the current minimum 
width of a two-way driveway is 22’.   
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he agrees with the petitioner that this property needs help. 
 
Mr. Courtney said he would be more inclined to grant a variance if they had a potential 
buyer, but right now no one is occupying the building and there is no hardship. 
 
Mr. Hutson agreed and stated in his opinion there is no practical difficulty.   
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartoletti stated that the people across the street and to the south are already 
parking in the front setback and they would like to be able to do the same. 
 
Mr. Hutson said there is nothing crucial at this time.  These buildings are empty and 
there is no hardship.  Mr. Hutson suggested that the petitioner may want to withdraw 
these requests until he has a definite buyer for the property. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he felt the lack of parking would be a hardship for anyone 
interested in these properties. 
 
Mr. Wright agreed especially since the City is not enforcing the parking. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that if the petitioner had a tenant he would agree with Mr. Maxwell, 
however, no one is in the building and there is not a current problem, just a potential 
problem.   
 
Mr. Bortoletti stated that the real estate market is very bad right now and basically it is 
small companies that are interested in this type of property and they like to move very 
quickly. 
 
Mr. Bortoletti stated that he would like to withdraw his request for a variance on 122 
Minnesota and 224 Minnesota. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to accept the petitioner’s request to withdraw his request to expand the 
existing parking lot at 122 Minnesota that will result in the parking lot being within 15’ of 
the front property line. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  KEN BURKHART, 224 MINNESOTA, for relief of 
the Ordinance to expand the parking lot at an existing industrial building that will result 
in the parking lot being within 15’ of the front property line, where Section 30.20.09 of 
the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ front yard setback and Paragraph L of Section 
31.30.00 requires that this yard remain free of parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to expand 
the parking lot at an existing industrial building.  The petitioner is proposing the 
construction of three parking spaces in the front of an existing industrial building that will 
result in the parking lot being within 15’ of the front property line.  Section 30.20.09 of  

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ front yard setback and Paragraph L of Section 
31.30.00 requires that this yard remain free of parking spaces. 
 
This request was heard with Item #5 as the petitioner and request are the same on both 
properties. 
 
Mr. Bortoletti stated that he would like to withdraw his request for a variance on 122 
Minnesota and 224 Minnesota. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to accept the petitioner’s request to withdraw his request to expand the 
existing parking lot at 224 Minnesota that will result in the parking lot being within 15’ of 
the front property line. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. MICHAEL TAORMINO, 1874 
WYNGATE, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a deck enclosure that will result in a 
35’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ rear yard setback for 
buildings in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a room over a deck that will result in a proposed 35’ rear yard setback.  Section 
30.10.02 requires a 45’ rear yard setback for buildings in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the property behind this lot was part of Firefighters Park.  Mr. 
Stimac explained that the property directly behind this parcel was platted as part of the 
subdivision. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the size of the structure was and Mr. Stimac said that it is 14’ 
x 13”. 
 
Mr. Courtney then asked if the deck was encroaching into the setback.  Mr. Stimac 
explained that an uncovered deck is allowed a 15’ encroachment into the required rear 
yard. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Taormino were present.  Mr. Taormino said that their property backs up to 
the wetland and the bugs are really intolerable.  Adjacent to the wetlands is a retention 
pond and there are a number of geese around this pond.  They have two children and a 
dog, and it is very difficult to spend anytime outside in the summer. 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if this room could be used year round.  Mrs. Taormino said that it 
would be a three-season room.  It would not be heated. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there was any other location they could put this room.  Mr. 
Taormino said that they had tried to put it in other locations, but because of the way the 
roof is it would not fit in anywhere else. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how large this home was.  Mr. Taormino said it is approximately 3600 
square feet.   
 
Mr. Kovacs then asked how long they had owned the property and Mr. Taormino said 
that have been in the house since May.  This was a spec home.  Mr. Kovacs said that 
he understands their problem with the bugs as he had lived next to a retention pond, but 
believes that there may be other options available. This is a very large house and there 
is a lot of room on the side of the house. 
 
Mr. Taormino said if they put the room on the side of the house they would not have any 
access from the house.  You would have to go outside in order to go back into the 
three-season room. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion granting this request would be similar to opening 
“Pandora’s Box”.  There is no problem with the land.  Mr. Taormino said that they really 
can’t enjoy their house as much as they would like to because of this bug problem. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that he is very sympathetic with these problems.  This is a new 
subdivision and certain setbacks are put in place for everyone in the subdivision.  If this 
variance is granted, the Board would have more neighbors asking for the same type of 
variance.  This Board is charged with enforcing the Ordinance and there is no hardship 
with the land. 
 
Mr. Taormino said that he did not think granting this variance would cause a problem as 
there are only a few homes that back up to this wetland.  Mr. Hutson said that the bugs 
are the same for all the homes. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that in his opinion this was a very large variance request.  He feels 
that he would be willing to give them some type of variance but not 10’ because of the 
fact that this lot is somewhat irregular. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked the petitioners if they felt they would like to explore other options. 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that if the variance was denied tonight and they came back with a 
large change, the Board could act on the new variance request. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Mr. & Mrs. Michael Taormino, 1874 Wyngate, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct a deck enclosure that will result in a 35’ rear yard setback 
where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ rear yard setback for buildings in the R-1B 
Zoning District. 
 
Motion dies to a lack of support. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Taormino said that they would like to postpone their request for a variance. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Mr. and Mrs. Michael Taormino, 1874 Wyngate, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a deck enclosure that will result in a 35’ rear yard 
setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ rear yard setback for building in the R-
1B Zoning District for sixty (60) days until the meeting of February 20, 2007. 
 

• To allow the petitioners the opportunity to explore other possibilities that may 
reduce the size of this variance request. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL FEBRUARY 20, 2007 CARRIED 
 
Mr. Wright stated that in his opinion the hardship could be considered the fact that they 
back up to the wetland and there are a large number of bugs.  The hardship would not 
be with their property, but the property adjacent to them. 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TROY CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE, 6840 
CROOKS, for relief of side yard building setback, side yard parking lot setback, and 
screening requirements of Section 10.30.04 of the Ordinance to construct a multi 
purpose/classroom addition to the existing Church.   
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Paragraph B of Section 
10.30.04, which requires a side yard setback of 50’ for a Church in the R-1B Zoning 
District.  Paragraph G of the same Section further requires that side setback to be 
increased to 80’ when the addition includes active indoor recreation facilities.  The site 
plan submitted indicates that the building will be only 48.9’ from the north property line. 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Petitioner is also requesting relief of Paragraph E of Section 10.30.04 requires that 
there be no parking in these required side yards.  The site plans submitted indicated 
new parking or driveways within 16’ of the north property line and 47’ of the south 
property line.  Paragraph F of this Section also requires a 4’-6” high screening wall or 
landscaped berm be installed between parking areas and adjacent residential land.  No 
screening elements are provided between the parking area and the adjacent residential 
land to the north or south.       
 
David LeClair of Livingston Engineering, and Pastor Dennis Wegener of the Troy 
Church of the Nazarene were present.   
 
Mr. LeClair explained that the Church is currently interested in expanding its current 
facility and adding a multi-purpose classroom addition.  This building was built in the  
70’s and they would like to update and expand it in order to meet their needs.  Mr. 
LeClair said that there are three (3) hardships:  1.  There are existing natural features 
that include a very mature landscape buffer on the south side of the building and there 
is a heavily wooded area at the back of the building and there is quite a bit of 
landscaping on the north side of the building; 2. The Church has been in existence for a 
number of years and just want to expand on the existing footprint of the building in an 
east and west direction; 3. The site is only 200’ wide and the requirements of the 
Ordinance create a hardship because of the narrowness of the lot. 
 
Mr. LeClair addressed each hardship in order beginning with the request for a setback 
variance for the activity center.  The property to the north is occupied by Sunrise 
Assisted Living, the Ordinance requires an 80’ setback to residential property, and 
although it is zoned Residential, it is not your typical type of residence.   They are 
planning to expand the building out from the existing structure and therefore would be 
the same as it is today.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what the intended use of the expansion was going to be.  Mr. LeClair 
said it was going to be used as an activity center, classrooms and a fellowship hall. 
 
Pastor Wegener stated that the proposed use of the expansion is two-fold.  There will 
be several classrooms and the rest of the area will be used on Sundays for “kids 
worship” and also as a fellowship hall.  Mr. Maxwell asked what they planned to put in 
the space.  Pastor Wegener stated that they would like to put up a few basketball 
hoops, but it would not be full size gym, and also plan to use it for Church dinners.  The 
primary use will be for the children.  The second floor will have a loft that will be 
designated as an area for teens to gather. 
 
Pastor Wegener said that they have a very good relationship with Sunrise Assisted 
Living and in fact have a path made of brick pavers between the two properties.  Pastor 
Wegener submitted a letter from Sunrise Assisted Living indicating approval of this 
request.  He goes there every morning and visits the people that live there.  They also  

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
have access to the parking and when needed they do use the extra parking on this 
property. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what the primary use of the space would be.  Pastor Wegener said 
that it would be used 75% for education.  On Sundays it will be used for education and 
teaching. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked why the wanted to put the addition on the front of the building rather 
than the back.  Pastor Wegener stated that the building was constructed in the 60’s and 
they are trying to make the front of the building look better than it does. The building 
would look more like a Church in the front and they feel this will make it more pleasant 
to the eye and will fit in better with Sunrise Assisted Living.  The building is unattractive 
and the sanctuary is in the back and access to the Church is easier. 
 
Mr. LeClair stated that even if the proposed construction took place at the back of the 
building a variance would still be required.   
 
Mr. LeClair said that regarding parking within the 50’ setback.  If you look at the site the 
existing parking lot is 16’ from the setback and we are asking to put in a driveway that 
would continue that 16’ from the back parking lot to the front parking lot.  This would 
enable an emergency vehicle to go around the entire building. 
 
Regarding the 4’ 6” high screen wall required there is natural landscaping. South of this 
property is a residential area but it is screened by a very mature tree line and they 
would have to destroy those trees in order to put up a screening wall.  They would like 
to leave existing trees in place. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the variance for the berm would be permanent or renewable.  Mr. 
Stimac stated that it would depend on how the Board acted on the request.  The 
petitioner’s request is to eliminate the screen wall and if the Board agreed, that would 
be a permanent variance.  If the request was to maintain a berm in lieu of a screen wall, 
that would be a renewable item.   
 
Mr. Wright stated that he did not see any problem with the variance requested for the 
south side results in a variance of a couple of inches.  Mr. Wright does not have a 
problem with granting a variance on the north side of the building for the parking 
variance.  He was wondering if the Board could grant a three (3) year variance for the 
berm. 
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      DECEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Troy Church of the Nazarene, 6840 Crooks, for relief of the side yard-
building setback, side yard parking lot setback, required by Section 10.30.04 of the 
Ordinance to construct a multi purpose/classroom addition to the existing Church.   
 

• Variance request on the south side is minimal. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to the property on the north side of 

this site. 
• Parking variance is in line with approved parking area. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE REQUESTS CARRIED 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Troy Church of the Nazarene, 6840 Crooks, relief of  the screening 
requirements of Section 10.30.04 of the Ordinance to construct a multi 
purpose/classroom to the existing Church. 
 

• Natural vegetation would have to be destroyed if the screen wall is required. 
• Too many trees that already provide screening would be lost. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Wright 
Nays:  2 – Kovacs, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO GRANT PERMANENT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the reason he voted no, was because he would have liked it to be 
renewable after a year.  He was concerned about any type of future use. 
 
Mr. Hutson informed the Board that this was his last meeting as he has been appointed 
to the Planning Commission.   He thanked everyone for all of their help and wished all a 
Happy Holiday. 
 
Mr. Wright welcomed Mr. Hutson to the Planning Commission and stated that he has 
enjoyed working with the Board this year and wished all a Happy Holiday. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:38 P.M. 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      DECEMBER 19, 2006 

 
 
 
              
       Michael Hutson, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 11



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JANUARY 2, 2007  
TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 2, 2007 
TROY CITY HALL - CONFERENCE ROOM C 

 
I. Call to Order 7:30 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call: 

Present:  
Padma Kuppa 
Kelly Jones 
Michelle Haight 
Malini Sarma 
Reuben Ellis – 7:30 pm 
Mayada Fakhouri – 7:45 pm 
Lulu Guo, Student Rep 
Helen Yang, Student Rep 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
 
Absent:  
Gladson Remos 
Tony Haddad 
Anju Brodbine  
 

III. Approval of Minutes – November 14, 2006 
Motion by Padma Kuppa to approve the November 14, 2006 minutes, seconded by Kelly 
Jones.  Approved unanimously. 

  
IV. Correspondence / Articles  
 
V. New Business 
 

a. Diversity Training - MI Roundtable for Diversity and Inclusion training. 
 
“Trading Places”, Community Dialogue will be held on Tuesday, Feb. 6th & 13th from  
5:30 – 9:30 pm in the Lower Level Conference Room. 
Also invite Hailu Robele, Cathy Francois, Kevin Yan and Barb Ford.  Cindy will call/email 
all board members re: attendance.  Padma & Malini cannot attend 
 
b. Bridging the Racial Divide – part II 
Mon. Feb. 5th 6 – 9 pm 
Cindy will check on an available room @ community center. 

 Training Tuesday Jan. 9th @ 5:30 pm 
 

c. Michelle met with Tim McAvoy and Kathy Davisson, Troy Schools 
Re:  Cultural Community Committee @ Barnard. She wondered what other schools are 
doing. Michelle is doing a Barnard newsletter and Tim said he’d be receptive to a district 
wide newsletter and/or anything the EIA Board would be willing to offer. Tim said schools 
have not had diversity training on a district wide basis. Kathy was going to survey all the 
elementary schools about what they offer related to diversity. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JANUARY 2, 2007  
 
Board agrees to support Michelle’s newsletter contribution to the school district on behalf 
of the EIA Board.  
 
 

 
VI. Old Business  

a. EthniCity – Troy Daze 
Still need co-chairs for EthniCity 
 
b. Recommendations re: Board vacancies  
EIA Board needs to make recommendations to City Council whenever there is an Ethnic 
Issues Advisory Board vacancy. 
 
Padma plans to submit her notice of resignation. 
 
Motion by Padma, seconded by Michelle H. to recommend  
Cathy Francois 
Kevin Yan 
Hailu Robele 
for Ethnic Issues Advisory Board vacancies.  All three have attended meetings, shown an 
interest re: volunteering for EthniCity and attending Bridging the Racial Divide – part I. 

 
c. Absences – Policy is all board members must attend monthly meetings, missing no 

more than 2 meetings per year.  Add this policy again to the March meeting agenda 
for discussion.  

 
VII. Staff Report 

 
VIII. Public Comment 

 
IX. Adjournment 
 
 
Motion to adjourn by Padma Kuppa, seconded by Malini Sarma.  Meeting adjourned at 8:40 pm. 
 
 
Next Scheduled Meeting – February 6, 2007 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michelle Haight, EIA Chair 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Jan. 4, 2007 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Jan. 4, 
2007 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   David Ogg, Member  
 Frank Shier, Member  Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: Merrill Dixon, excused    
   
Visitors:  Tom Rosewarne, John Abraham, Margaret Julian, Linda Macka 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-1-001 
Moved by Pauline Noce  
Seconded by JoAnn thompson  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Dec. 7, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  7       
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Linda Macka provided details about the upcoming spelling bee 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that a ribbon cutting ceremony will be held in 
the spring.  The committee would like to have it in March.  Sixteen people have expressed an 
interest in a bocce league and four have expressed interest in a shuffleboard league.  It will be 
announced that the courts are available for open play and that leagues will be formed if 
interest is sufficient.  Several “learn to play” sessions will be offered as soon as weather 
permits, probably beginning in April. 
 
Street Signs:  Superintendent of Streets Tom Rosewarne and Traffic Engineer John Abraham 
presented information about street signs:  size, color, placement, trends around the country, 
and changes being considered for Troy.  Committee members questioned visibility of signs, 
lack of signs on some corners and timing of lights.  
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Jan. 4, 2007 

2 

 
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that the contract with Emerald 
Food Service will end February 12.  The City is accepting proposals from caterers and will 
develop a list of "preferred" caterers for the Community Center.  Proposals are due January 
16.   Changes in the food policy regarding non-profit groups that meet the residency 
requirement has yet to be determined.   JoAnn read a quote by Steve Haveraneck that 
appeared in the Troy Times stating that he would “have allowed people to bring in cookies had 
I known it would create so much discontent. “  JoAnn pointed out that this statement was 
contrary to the position Emerald had maintained throughout discussions about the issue.   
 
Lunch Visits:  The committee discussed visiting Clawson, Sterling Heights, Warren and 
Harrison Twp, among others, for the senior lunch. 
 
Medicare Part D:  The committee continued their discussion about the importance of being 
informed about the various plans and the need to keep up with the changes.   
 
Kaleidoscope:  Carla reported that if committee members wish to volunteer at the 
Kaleidscope, they should contact Nickie Kaptur at 248-680-7223.  Senior program information 
will be available at the Parks and Recreation table.  The committee would like Carla to print 
some of the Senior Advisory Committee brochures for this table, and they will decide if they 
want to get more involved next year. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  No report.  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that staff and board members enjoyed a holiday party in 
December. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the new senior home repair program, SHARP, will hold 
it’s kick-off on January 25.  They have formed a 14-member steering committee and most of 
the positions have been filled.  Those interested in a supper club held their first meeting today.  
Eight people attended.  Troy’s spelling duel will be held January 18.  There are 13 competitors 
this year.  
 
OLHSA:  Pauline reported that they had a speaker from Senior Services, Inc. a non-profit 
agency in Kalamazoo that offers home repairs for seniors.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they discussed projects 
for the upcoming year.   
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there were no suggestions this month. 
 
Comments 
 
David Ogg announced that there are openings for the next Citizens Academy. 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Jan. 4, 2007 

3 

Frank Shier suggested that the Committee take advantage of the opportunity for exposure at 
the Kaleidoscope and that they spend less time discussing the Medicare issue. 
 
Jo Rhoads suggested that some of the street sign information presented at today’s meeting be 
passed on to other seniors via the newsletter.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:10 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 8, 2007  

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, January 
8, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Committee member Henry Allemon called the meeting to order at 
6:58 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Kelsey Brunette, Student Representative 

Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Christopher Stout 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2007-01-001  
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting of   BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of November 13, 2006 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2007-01-002 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Payne 
 

 Page 1 of 3

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 8, 2007  

RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the November 13, 2006 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. Cucina Development, Inc., AKA Bravo Development, Inc. (an Ohio 

Corporation) requests to transfer stock thru merger in 2006 Class C 
Licensed business located at Somerset Collection South, 2801 W. Big 
Beaver, Suite E150, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.  (This is a stock 
merger and not a new owner for Brio Tuscan Grill) 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Scott Edwards, attorney for 
Bravo Development.  Mr. Edwards stated this transaction was merely a stock 
transfer by merger with no change in ownership or operations.  A chart was 
provided to each of the Committee members which outlined the percentage of 
ownership of the various parties.  This merger will affect all five of the restaurant 
locations.   
 
Sergeant Stout advised the Committee that there have been no recent liquor 
violations. 
 
Resolution #LC2007-01-003 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that Cucina Development, Inc., AKA Bravo Development, Inc. (an 
Ohio Corporation) be allowed to transfer stock thru merger in 2006 Class C 
Licensed business located at Somerset Collection South, 2801 W. Big Beaver, 
Suite E150, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County 
 
 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 

 Page 2 of 3



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 8, 2007  

Sergeant Stout advised the Committee that the Directed Patrol Unit of the Police 
Department had recently conducted 71 decoy liquor operations.  The only violation 
issued was to Nino Salvaggio International Marketplace for sale to an underaged 
patron.   
 
Sergeant Stout also advised the Committee that there was now one quota Class C 
liquor license available in Troy.  He stated that he has received numerous 
telephone inquiries about the license but the Michigan Liquor Control Commission 
has sent no paperwork. 
 
The Hooters liquor license issue was raised.  Assistant City Attorney Allan Motzny 
advised the Committee that the matter was on tonight’s City Council agenda.  He 
stated that Hooters offered some concessions including removal of signs, closure 
of the John R location, and dismissal of the current litigation.   
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Henry W. Allemon, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 

 Page 3 of 3



DATE:        January 2, 2007
TO:             Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of December 2006

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Completion (New) 1 $4,300,000.00 $23,645.00
Add/Alter 5 $210,200.00 $2,150.00

Sub Total 6 $4,510,200.00 $25,795.00

COMMERCIAL
Fnd. New 1 $255,000.00 $1,930.00
Completion (New) 1 $550,000.00 $3,995.00
Accessory Structure 1 $500.00 $35.00
Add/Alter 17 $864,300.00 $8,196.00

Sub Total 20 $1,669,800.00 $14,156.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 5 $690,789.00 $5,583.00
Add/Alter 11 $376,150.00 $4,040.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $9,000.00 $195.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 2 $4,495.00 $130.00
Repair 1 $12,000.00 $229.00
Fire Repair 3 $530,433.00 $4,068.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $50.00

Sub Total 24 $1,622,867.00 $14,295.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 4 $419,852.00 $3,527.00
Ent. Wall/Masonry Fence 1 $65,000.00 $600.00

Sub Total 5 $484,852.00 $4,127.00

MULTIPLE
Repair 3 $19,500.00 $465.00

Sub Total 3 $19,500.00 $465.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 2 $2,200,000.00 $15,290.00

Sub Total 2 $2,200,000.00 $15,290.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 1 $1,000.00 $500.00

Sub Total 1 $1,000.00 $500.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 27 $0.00 $2,780.00
Fences 6 $0.00 $90.00

Sub Total 33 $0.00 $2,870.00

TOTAL 94 $10,508,219.00 $77,498.00

PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2006
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 62 $620.00
Cert. of Occupancy 36 $3,347.30
Plan Review 61 $5,381.00
Microfilm 29 $327.00
Building Permits 94 $77,498.00
Electrical Permits 144 $12,412.00
Heating Permits 117 $6,095.00
Air Cond. Permits 22 $1,195.00
Plumbing Permits 77 $5,268.00
Storm Sewer Permits 7 $532.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 4 $180.00
Sewer Taps 12 $2,912.00

TOTAL 665 $115,767.30

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2006
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 40 $200.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 23 $345.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 11 $11.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 1 $10.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 1 $15.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 8 $80.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 1 $15.00

TOTAL 25 $676.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2005 2005 2006 2006

JANUARY 93 $6,617,765.00 116 $7,273,163.00

FEBRUARY 133 $8,586,755.00 94 $6,659,691.00

MARCH 143 $19,405,253.00 127 $5,629,425.00

APRIL 234 $16,039,899.00 174 $5,766,996.00

MAY 229 $8,974,377.00 216 $11,290,598.00

JUNE 207 $14,432,280.00 218 $10,681,352.00

JULY 176 $7,490,327.00 198 $11,269,902.00

AUGUST 202 $13,132,327.00 150 $14,170,725.00

SEPTEMBER 207 $11,424,698.00 161 $12,827,192.00

OCTOBER 169 $12,606,760.00 134 $10,733,680.00

NOVEMBER 137 $9,014,642.00 111 $6,690,950.00

DECEMBER 91 $13,489,338.00 94 $10,508,219.00

TOTAL 2021 $141,214,421.00 1793 $113,501,893.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2006

12 9 4 9 7 9 6 4
11

5 6 5
0

10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Jan 2, 2007 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2006Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter CUNNINGHAM-LIMP 1250 STEPHENSON 200  250,000
Commercial, Add/Alter PREMIER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 2075 W BIG BEAVER 550  140,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  390,000

Commercial, Completion New BUSCEMI, PAUL & DAVE 3176 ROCHESTER  550,000

Commercial, Completion NewTotal  550,000

Commercial, Foundation New TALON 5660 NEW KING  255,000

Commercial, Foundation NewTotal  255,000

Industrial, Add/Alter DANIEL ELECTRIC COMPANY 2345 W MAPLE  120,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  120,000

Industrial, Completion New BEHR AMERICA INC 2716 DALEY  4,300,000

Industrial, Completion NewTotal  4,300,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter BEAUMONT SERVICES CO 44201 DEQUINDRE SITEDEV  1,200,000
Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter CONTRACTING RESOURCE, INC 44201 DEQUINDRE 2 EAST  1,000,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  2,200,000

Total Valuation:  7,815,000Records  9



DATE:         January 2, 2007
TO:              Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:         Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued July through December 2006

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
New 2 $5,115,000.00 $29,865.00
Fnd. New 2 $2,290,000.00 $14,120.00
Completion (New) 2 $5,210,000.00 $30,160.00
Tenant Completion 1 $100,000.00 $845.00
Add/Alter 37 $2,037,455.00 $18,977.00
Wall 1 $75,000.00 $670.00
Parking Lot 1 $14,000.00 $25.00

Sub Total 46 $14,841,455.00 $94,662.00

COMMERCIAL
New 1 $1,300,000.00 $8,645.00
Fnd. New 4 $4,170,000.00 $25,770.00
Shell New 2 $6,008,000.00 $32,320.00
Fnd./Shell New 1 $452,000.00 $3,309.00
New Less Tenent 1 $465,000.00 $3,400.00
Completion (New) 2 $1,600,000.00 $11,390.00
Tenant Completion 4 $145,000.00 $1,595.00
Accessory Structure 2 $10,500.00 $250.00
Add/Alter 131 $13,056,955.00 $107,987.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $100.00
Wall 2 $18,000.00 $325.00
Kiosk 2 $230,000.00 $1,900.00

Sub Total 153 $27,455,455.00 $196,991.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 37 $8,345,154.00 $64,844.00
Add/Alter 167 $4,312,886.00 $48,449.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 38 $251,072.00 $4,652.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 27 $400,143.00 $5,178.00
Repair 13 $178,154.00 $2,541.00
Fire Repair 12 $1,420,294.00 $11,566.00
Wreck 15 $0.00 $930.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 1 $1,500.00 $55.00

Sub Total 310 $14,909,203.00 $138,215.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 24 $2,837,052.00 $23,395.00
Add/Alter 22 $175,828.00 $2,865.00
Ent. Wall/Masonry Fence 1 $65,000.00 $600.00

Sub Total 47 $3,077,880.00 $26,860.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 1 $0.00 $30.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 4 $70,175.00 $1,091.00
Repair 3 $19,500.00 $465.00

Sub Total 8 $89,675.00 $1,586.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 8 $4,536,000.00 $31,252.00

Sub Total 8 $4,536,000.00 $31,252.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 4 $1,236,000.00 $9,580.00

Sub Total 4 $1,236,000.00 $9,580.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 3 $55,000.00 $755.00
Signs 190 $0.00 $20,425.00
Fences 79 $0.00 $1,245.00

Sub Total 272 $55,000.00 $22,425.00

TOTAL 848 $66,200,668.00 $521,571.00

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED JULY THROUGH DECEMBER 2006
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 1455 $14,550.00
Cert. of Occupancy 247 $19,885.35
Plan Review 733 $58,096.22
Microfilm 215 $2,132.00
Building Permits 848 $521,571.00
Electrical Permits 1033 $74,976.00
Heating Permits 754 $40,053.00
Air Cond. Permits 286 $13,688.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $60.00
Plumbing Permits 701 $48,632.00
Storm Sewer Permits 98 $7,491.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 105 $3,952.00
Sewer Taps 92 $34,640.00

TOTAL 6568 $839,726.57

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED JULY THROUGH DECEMBER 2006
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 272 $1,360.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 147 $2,205.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 121 $121.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 22 $1,100.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 22 $220.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 5 $75.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 9 $90.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 125 $1,250.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 8 $120.00

TOTAL 25 $6,541.00

Page 3



DATE:         January 2, 2007

TO:              Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:         Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued during the Year 2006

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
New 2 $5,115,000.00 $29,865.00
Fnd. New 2 $2,290,000.00 $14,120.00
Fnd./Shell New 1 $180,000.00 $1,010.00
Completion (New) 2 $5,210,000.00 $30,160.00
Tenant Completion 1 $100,000.00 $845.00
Accessory Structure 2 $52,500.00 $661.00
Add/Alter 77 $5,261,505.00 $46,528.00
Wall 1 $75,000.00 $670.00
Parking Lot 3 $116,550.00 $1,017.00

Sub Total 91 $18,400,555.00 $124,876.00

COMMERCIAL
New 5 $6,244,870.00 $41,462.00
Fnd. New 4 $4,170,000.00 $25,770.00
Shell New 2 $6,008,000.00 $32,320.00
Fnd./Shell New 1 $452,000.00 $3,309.00
New Less Tenent 1 $465,000.00 $3,400.00
Completion (New) 3 $2,100,000.00 $15,035.00
Tenant Completion 12 $853,000.00 $7,711.00
Accessory Structure 2 $10,500.00 $250.00
Add/Alter 245 $29,075,886.00 $234,048.00
Wreck 5 $0.00 $500.00
Wall 3 $68,000.00 $820.00
Repair 6 $600,400.00 $3,750.00
Kiosk 2 $230,000.00 $1,900.00

Sub Total 291 $50,277,656.00 $370,275.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 87 $17,690,439.00 $137,330.00
Add/Alter 342 $7,618,251.00 $89,924.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 71 $563,949.00 $9,782.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 53 $820,234.00 $10,897.00
Ent. Wall/Masonry Fence 1 $5,000.00 $85.00
Repair 22 $381,841.00 $5,100.00
Fire Repair 16 $1,753,600.00 $14,484.00
Temporary Sales Trailer 1 $3,200.00 $95.00
Wreck 31 $15,000.00 $1,790.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 1 $1,500.00 $55.00

Sub Total 625 $28,853,014.00 $269,542.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 60 $5,670,868.00 $48,635.00
Add/Alter 51 $456,347.00 $7,195.00
Ent. Wall/Masonry Fence 1 $65,000.00 $600.00
Temporary Sales Trailer 1 $250,000.00 $1,895.00

Sub Total 113 $6,442,215.00 $58,325.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 2 $8,268.00 $175.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 5 $80,175.00 $1,306.00
Repair 3 $19,500.00 $465.00
Sub Total 10 $107,943.00 $1,946.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 22 $5,975,610.00 $43,376.00

Sub Total 22 $5,975,610.00 $43,376.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 8 $3,151,000.00 $23,465.00
Parking Lot 1 $5,400.00 $135.00

Sub Total 9 $3,156,400.00 $23,600.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 15 $288,500.00 $3,645.00
Signs 430 $0.00 $47,445.00
Fences 187 $0.00 $2,930.00

Sub Total 632 $288,500.00 $54,020.00

TOTAL 1793 $113,501,893.00 $945,960.00

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED DURING 2006
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 2304 $23,040.00
Cert. of Occupancy 496 $35,377.65
Plan Review 1602 $102,745.56
Microfilm 421 $4,223.00
Building Permits 1682 $945,960.00
Electrical Permits 2053 $144,060.00
Heating Permits 1471 $81,626.00
Air Cond. Permits 583 $29,413.00
Refrigeration Permits 11 $590.00
Plumbing Permits 1321 $98,755.00
Storm Sewer Permits 192 $11,508.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 193 $6,942.00
Sewer Taps 203 $60,264.00

TOTAL 12532 $1,544,504.21

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING 2006
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 411 $2,055.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 348 $5,220.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 275 $275.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 45 $2,250.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 66 $655.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 32 $480.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 27 $270.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 235 $2,350.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 24 $360.00

TOTAL 25 $13,915.00

Page 3



campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



campbellld
Text Box
J-02e









campbellld
Text Box
J-02f



































campbellld
Text Box
J-02g



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



2/26/07 PH MI Next Energy Exemptions
2/26/07 PH Street Vacation Alley N of Big Beaver Sec 22

2/26/07 PH Rezoning Spa Renaissance Sec 22 R-1E to O-1

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

January 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28

February 2007January 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
January 1, 07

City Hall Closed
2

7:00pm Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

3
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Persons with 
Disabilities  (Confere

4
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

5 6

7

8
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

9
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

10
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

11 12 13

14

15 16
3:00pm CANCELLED BRA 

Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

17
7:30am CANCELLED DDA 

Meeting (Conference 
Room Lower Level)

7:00pm Cable Advisory 
Committee 
(Conference Room C)

18
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

19 20

21

22
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

23
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

24 25 26 27

28

29 30 31

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



2/26/07 PH MI Next Energy Exemptions
2/26/07 PH Street Vacation Alley N of Big Beaver Sec 22

2/26/07 PH Rezoning Spa Renaissance Sec 22 R-1E to O-1

S M T W T F S
1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28

February 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

March 2007February 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
February 1

1:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

2 3

4

5
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

6
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

7
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room L

7:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Persons with Dis

7:30pm City Council Liquor 
Hearing (Council C

8 9 10

11

12
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

13
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

14
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

15
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

16 17

18

19 20
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

21
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

22 23 24

25

26
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

27
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

28
7:30pm City Council Liquor 

Hearing (Council 
Chambers)



2/26/07 PH MI Next Energy Exemptions
2/26/07 PH Street Vacation Alley N of Big Beaver Sec 22

2/26/07 PH Rezoning Spa Renaissance Sec 22 R-1E to O-1

S M T W T F S
1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

March 2007
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

April 2007March 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
March 1

1:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

2 3

4

5
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

6
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

7
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Persons with 
Disabilities  (Confere

8 9 10

11

12
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

13
8:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

14
1:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

2:00pm Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Board 
(Conference Room C)

15
8:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

16 17

18

19
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

20
8:30pm BZA (Chambers)
8:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

21
8:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

22 23 24

25

26 27
8:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

8:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

28 29 30 31



 

 
 
January 15, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
    Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
SUBJECT:   Sidewalk Maintenance Program 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The City of Troy’s initial sidewalk maintenance program provided for repair of scattered locations. 

During this period the majority of subdivisions in the City of Troy did not have sidewalks. 
Subdivision development in the City of Troy from the mid 1970’s to the mid 1980’s significantly 
increased the miles of sidewalks requiring maintenance.  

 In 1988 the City of Troy revised the sidewalk maintenance program from repair of scattered 
locations to inspection of entire subdivisions based on age plus scattered locations. The scattered 
locations were of a nature that they could not be temporarily patched pending a future subdivision-
wide sidewalk maintenance program. 

 In 2003 the sidewalk maintenance program was revised into a program based on multiple 
adjacent sections. The City of Troy was divided into 12 program years for sidewalks as part of the 
internal local road system. The sidewalk system for sidewalks on the mile or major road system 
was divided into 6 program years. The decision to provide a 6 year program on the mile or major 
road system was based on the significant construction and infrastructure activities on these roads. 
Scattered locations of a nature that cannot be temporarily patched pending a future program are 
still added to each program year. The 12 year program of local road sidewalks and the 6 year 
program for major road sidewalks are delineated in attachment (A).  

 Additionally at the completion of each local road sidewalk program year we review the Americans 
with Disabilities Act requirements and make additional changes to the ramps and locations of 
ramps. When new sidewalks or walkways are built or altered, they must contain curb ramps or 
sloped areas wherever they intersect with streets or roads. Resurfacing a street or sidewalk is 
considered an alteration for these purposes. See attachment (B). Specific areas that are reviewed 
include removal of sidewalks that end at a street with no sidewalk access on the opposite side of 
the street and sidewalks that end at a street and have a driveway on the opposite side of the 
street.  Driveway approaches do not qualify under ADA as approved sidewalk curb cuts. See 
Attachment (C).   

 In 2005 the City of Troy adopted the policy that if a residential property owner met HUD income 
guidelines, the City at large would cover their cost of sidewalk replacement and repair.  

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Prior to each program year, inspections occur in order to request budget funding to complete the 

sidewalk maintenance program work for the program year that falls in the corresponding budget 
year. 

 The City of Troy and the adjacent property owner share financial responsibility as outlined in   
attachment (D).  

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 These programs were developed to reduce liability to residents and the City as a whole and to 

abide by all applicable laws.  The sidewalk maintenance program is reviewed annually. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Creatively and maintain and improve public infrastructure (Goal IV) 
 Protect Life and Property (Goal VI) 

 
Options: 
 
 No options, this is an informational report only. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Attachment (A) 

 



Attachment (B) 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Civil Rights Division 
Disability Rights Section  

  

  

The ADA and City Governments: Common Problems 

  

 
 

Issue: Curb Ramps 

Common Problem: 

City governments often do not provide necessary curb ramps to ensure that people 

with disabilities can travel throughout the city in a safe and convenient manner. 

Result: 

Without the required curb ramps, sidewalk travel in urban areas is dangerous, difficult, 

and in some cases impossible for people who use wheelchairs, scooters, and other 

mobility aids. Curb ramps allow people with mobility impairments to gain access to the 

sidewalks and to pass through center islands in streets. Otherwise, these individuals are 

forced to travel in streets and roadways and are put in danger or are prevented from 

reaching their destination. 

Requirement: 

When streets and roads are newly built or altered, they must have ramps wherever 

there are curbs or other barriers to entry from a pedestrian walkway. Likewise, when 
new sidewalks or walkways are built or altered, they must contain curb ramps or sloped 
areas wherever they intersect with streets or roads. While resurfacing a street or 
sidewalk is considered an alteration for these purposes, filling in potholes alone will not 



trigger the alterations requirements. At existing roads and sidewalks that have not been 

altered, however, city governments may choose to construct curb ramps at every point 

where a pedestrian walkway intersects a curb, but they are not necessarily required to 

do so. Under program access, alternative routes to buildings that make use of existing 

curb ramps may be acceptable where people with disabilities must only travel a 

marginally longer route. 

 

 



 

Attachment (C) 

 

 

Example of a sidewalk that use to lead into the street that has a driveway on the 

opposite side of the street. The driveway is not an approved curb cut for pedestrian 

traffic.



 

 

This is an example of a sidewalk that entered into a roadway that does not have an 

access sidewalk on the opposite side of the street.  In these cases during the following 

construction season approved sidewalks and curb cuts will be installed on both sides of 

the street.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

This is an example of a sidewalk that entered into a major roadway (Square Lake Road) 

that does not have an access sidewalk on the opposite side of the street or a marked 

crosswalk.   



At
ta

ch
m

en
t (

D
)  

  

 

 



 

 


	AGENDA: January 22, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Service Commendation – Peggy Adams
	Service Commendation – Mary Ann Nemshick
	Service Commendation – Marlene Struckman


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 No Public Hearings

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Troy Daze Festival

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Ex�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Ex�

	E-5 Continued Participation in the Administration of School 

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Ratification of Board of Review Appointment: b) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) c) City Council Appoi
	F-2 2007 Poverty Exemption Guidelines
	F-3 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Stone Haven Park S
	F-4  Disposal/Sale of Excess Property
	F-5  Adoption of Amended Goals and Objectives

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Michigan Next Energy Exemptions – February 26, 2007
	Street Vacation Application (File Number: SV 188) – A Sectio
	Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-724) – Proposed Spa Ren

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 5, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 5, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Dec
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Dec
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 7, 2
	Planning Commission/Draft – December 12, 2006
	Planning Commission/Final – December 12, 2006
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – Decem
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – December 19, 2006
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 19, 2006
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 2, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – January 4, 20
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 8, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of Dec
	Building Department – Permits Issued July through December, 
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Year 2006
	Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Congres
	Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auc
	City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2006
	Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Lead

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Robert Smith Regarding 

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richna

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



